# UNITED STATES SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION WASHINGTON, DC 20549

SCHEDULE 14A (RULE 14a-101)

# SCHEDULE 14A INFORMATION

Proxy Statement Pursuant to Section 14(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (Amendment No. )

Fil	ed b	y the Registrant
Fil	ed b	y a Party other than the Registrant □
Ch	eck	the appropriate box:
	Con Det	liminary Proxy Statement.  Infidential, for use of the Commission Only (as permitted by Rule 14a-6(e)(2)).  Infinitive Proxy Statement.  Infinitive Additional Materials.  Initive Additional Pursuant to §240.14a-12.
		Federal National Mortgage Association
		(Name of Registrant as Specified in Its Charter)
		(Name of Person(s) Filing Proxy Statement, if Other Than the Registrant)
Pa	yme	nt of Filing Fee (Check the appropriate box):
✓	No	fee required.
	Fee	e computed on table below per Exchange Act Rules 14a-6(i)(1) and 0-11.
	1.	Title of each class of securities to which transaction applies:
	2.	Aggregate number of securities to which transaction applies:
	3.	Per unit price or other underlying value of transaction computed pursuant to Exchange Act Rule 0-11 (set forth the amount on which the filing fee is calculated and state how it was determined):
	4.	Proposed maximum aggregate value of transaction:
	5.	Total fee paid:
	Fee	e paid previously with preliminary materials.
	wh	eck box if any part of the fee is offset as provided by Exchange Act Rule 0-11(a)(2) and identify the filing for ich the offsetting fee was paid previously. Identify the previous filing by registration statement number, or the m or schedule and the date of its filing.
	1.	Amount previously paid:
	2.	Form, Schedule or Registration Statement No.:
	3.	Filing Party:
	4.	Date Filed:



April 4, 2008

### Dear Shareholder:

We cordially invite you to attend the annual shareholders' meeting of the Federal National Mortgage Association (Fannie Mae). The meeting will be held on Tuesday, May 20, 2008, at 10:00 A.M. (local time) at The Westin New Orleans Canal Place, 100 Rue Iberville, New Orleans, Louisiana 70130.

Our annual shareholders' meeting in New Orleans comes two and one half years after Hurricanes Katrina and Rita ravaged the Gulf Coast. Fannie Mae has already committed \$40 billion in financing for housing and redevelopment in the Gulf region since Hurricane Katrina in 2005 and we expect to invest more in the years ahead. We remain committed to our many partners in this region and to all the communities who are still rebuilding. Holding our annual meeting here is just one indication of that continued support.

At the meeting, shareholders will vote on a number of important matters. Our 2007 Annual Report to Shareholders includes our audited financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2007, along with a discussion and analysis of our financial results. Please take the time to review our 2007 Annual Report to Shareholders and to read carefully each of the proposals described in the attached proxy statement.

Whether or not you plan to attend, please vote by Internet, telephone, or, if you received a paper copy of the materials by mail, mark, sign, date, and return your proxy card, so that your shares are represented at the meeting.

Thank you for your continued support and ownership of Fannie Mae.

Sincerely,

Stephen B. Ashley Chairman of the Board

Signer R. Cohly

This Proxy Statement and the accompanying form of proxy are first being sent to our common shareholders on or about April 4, 2008.



Notice of Annual Meeting of Shareholders

#### Dear Shareholder:

Fannie Mae's 2008 Annual Meeting of Shareholders will be held on Tuesday, May 20, 2008, at 10:00 A.M. (local time) at The Westin New Orleans Canal Place, 100 Rue Iberville, New Orleans, Louisiana 70130.

At the meeting, shareholders will be asked to:

- elect 12 directors, each for a term ending on the date of our next annual meeting,
- ratify the selection by the Audit Committee of Deloitte & Touche LLP as our independent registered public accounting firm for 2008,
- · act on a shareholder proposal, and
- consider any other business that may properly come before the meeting.

The close of business on March 21, 2008 was the record date for determining shareholders entitled to notice of, and to vote at, the annual meeting.

In accordance with the rules of the Securities and Exchange Commission, we mailed our proxy materials or sent notice and provided access to our proxy materials over the Internet, beginning on April 4, 2008, for the holders of record and beneficial owners of our common stock as of the close of business on the record date.

Your proxy is important. Whether or not you plan to attend the annual meeting, please vote by Internet, telephone, or, if you received a paper copy of the materials by mail, mark, sign, date, and return your proxy card, so that your shares will be represented at the annual meeting.

By Order of the Board of Directors,

Reth a. Will.

Beth A. Wilkinson Secretary

April 4, 2008

# **Table of Contents**

	Page
About the 2008 Annual Meeting—Q and A	5
Corporate Governance	8
Corporate Governance Practices	8
Codes of Conduct	8
<u>Director Independence</u>	8
Executive Sessions	10
Certain Transactions and Relationships	10
Communications with Directors	13
Stock Ownership	13
Beneficial Ownership Table	13
Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance	15
<b>Equity Compensation Plan Information</b>	16
Proposal 1: Election of Directors	17
Composition of the Board of Directors	17
Nominees for Election	18
Meetings of the Board of Directors and Committees	23
Committees of the Board of Directors	23
<u>Directors' Compensation</u>	25
Executive Officers	30
Executive Compensation	34
Compensation Discussion and Analysis	34
Report of the Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors	43
<u>Compensation Tables</u>	44
Report of the Audit Committee of the Board of Directors	58
<b>Proposal 2: Ratification of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm</b>	60
Shareholder Proposal	61
Other Matters	63
<b>Shareholder Proposals and Director Nominations for 2009</b>	63
Cost of Annual Meeting and Proxy Solicitation	64
Form 10-K, Annual Report to Shareholders	64

### About the 2008 Annual Meeting-Q and A

### Who can vote at the 2008 annual meeting?

You are entitled to vote or direct the voting of your shares of Fannie Mae common stock if you were a shareholder at the close of business on March 21, 2008, which is the record date for the annual meeting (the "Record Date"). Both "shareholders of record" and "street name holders" are entitled to vote or direct the voting of their Fannie Mae common stock.

You are a "shareholder of record" if you hold Fannie Mae common stock that is registered in your name at our transfer agent, Computershare, Inc.

You are a "**street name holder**" if you hold the common stock indirectly through a nominee, such as a broker, bank or similar institution. You may not directly vote the common stock you hold as a **street name holder**. However, as the beneficial owner of these shares, you have the right to direct your nominee on how to vote your shares. If you are a **street name holder**, these materials are being sent to you by your nominee and you will receive voting instructions from them, which may be different from the instructions provided here.

# What will I be voting on?

You will be voting on:

- Election of 12 directors (see page 17)
- Ratification of Deloitte & Touche, LLP, as Fannie Mae's independent registered public accounting firm for 2008 (see page 60)
- One shareholder proposal (see page 61)

# Who is soliciting my vote?

The Board of Directors of Fannie Mae is soliciting your vote at the 2008 annual meeting.

### How do I vote?

You can vote by proxy or in person at the annual meeting.

If voting by proxy, you may vote in any of the following three ways.

- *Vote by Internet.* To vote by Internet, go to the Internet address provided on your Notice of Internet Availability or your proxy or voting instruction card. You will need the Control Number included on your Notice of Internet Availability or your proxy or voting instruction card.
- *Vote by telephone.* To vote by telephone, dial the toll-free number provided on your proxy or voting instruction card using a touch-tone telephone. Have your proxy or voting instruction card in hand when you dial and follow the recorded instructions.
- *Vote by Mail.* To vote by mail, complete, sign, date and return your proxy or voting instruction card in the envelope provided. If you wish to vote by mail and you did not receive proxy materials by mail, you may request a copy by following the instructions on your Notice of Internet Availability.

You may also vote in person at the annual meeting. If you intend to attend the meeting, please bring personal, government-issued identification for admission, and evidence of your ownership of Fannie Mae common stock as of the close of business on the Record Date so that you can vote. This evidence may be in the form of your Notice of Internet Availability, your proxy or voting instruction card, or a bank or brokerage account statement.

To ensure your vote is counted, please remember to submit your vote so that it is received by 11:59 P.M. (EST) on May 19, 2008. If you are a **street name holder**, your nominee's instructions may be different.

### How many votes do I have?

You will have one vote for each share of Fannie Mae common stock you owned on the Record Date.

### How many votes can be cast by all shareholders?

982,322,357, consisting of one vote for each share of Fannie Mae common stock that was outstanding on the Record Date. The number of shares of common stock outstanding includes shares of restricted stock. No other class of voting stock is outstanding. There is no cumulative voting.

### How many shares of common stock must be present to hold the annual meeting?

Shares of common stock representing a majority of the votes that can be cast, or voted, by all holders of common stock, or 491,161,179 shares, must be present in person or represented by proxy to hold the meeting. Abstentions will be counted for the purpose of establishing a quorum at the annual meeting.

### How are my votes counted?

### Election of Directors

You may vote *FOR* or *AGAINST* the election of any director, but may not vote ABSTAIN with respect to the election of any director. Under our bylaws as amended in 2007, directors are elected by a majority vote in uncontested elections and by plurality vote in contested elections. A contested election is one in which the number of nominees exceeds the number of directors to be elected.

For the election of directors at the 2008 annual meeting, the number of nominees is not expected to exceed the number of directors to be elected and, therefore, majority voting will govern.

As a result, the number of shares cast FOR a director must exceed the number of votes cast AGAINST that director in order for the director to be elected. If a director receives FOR votes that total less than the majority of the votes cast, that director will be required to tender his or her resignation to the Board of Directors for its consideration.

Ratification of Selection of Auditors and Shareholder Proposal

You may vote FOR or AGAINST or you may ABSTAIN from voting on each of the other proposals. Each of the other proposals will pass if a majority of the votes cast on the particular proposal are voted FOR that proposal. Abstentions will not count either FOR or AGAINST and will therefore not have any effect on the outcome of a vote on such proposal.

### If I return a signed proxy or voting instruction card without indicating my vote, how will my shares be voted?

If you return a signed proxy or voting instruction card without indicating your vote, your shares will be voted:

- FOR the director nominees listed on the card,
- FOR ratification of Deloitte & Touche, LLP, as Fannie Mae's independent registered public accounting firm for 2008, and
- AGAINST the shareholder proposal.

If any other matter or business is properly brought before the annual meeting or any adjournment thereof, the proxy holders may vote the proxy in their discretion.

Can my shares be voted if I do not vote by telephone, by Internet, or by returning my proxy or voting instruction card, and I do not attend the annual meeting?

If you are a shareholder of record and do not vote shares registered in your name, your shares will not be voted.

If you are a **street name holder** and do not direct your nominee as to how to vote your shares, your broker generally may vote your shares on any of the routine matters scheduled to come before the meeting. Routine matters at the 2008 annual meeting are the election of directors and the ratification of Deloitte & Touche LLP's appointment.

Pursuant to New York Stock Exchange ("NYSE") rules, your broker will not be able to vote on any shareholder proposal because this type of proposal is not considered a routine matter. If you do not give your broker instructions on how to vote your shares on this proposal, the votes will be "broker non-votes." We count broker non-votes for quorum purposes, but we do not count broker non-votes as votes cast as it relates to a particular proposal and, therefore, they will not have any effect on the outcome of a vote on such proposal.

# Can I change my vote?

Yes. Any shareholder giving a proxy has the power to revoke it at any time before it is exercised.

You may revoke your proxy by:

- submitting a new proxy over the Internet or by telephone,
- sending, or presenting in person at the annual meeting, a new, more recently dated proxy or voting instruction card that has been signed by the person executing the prior proxy or voting instruction card prior to the closing of the polls at the annual meeting, or
- delivering a written statement to the Secretary of Fannie Mae at the address in the Notice of the Annual Meeting stating that the proxy is revoked.

### Could other matters be decided at the 2008 annual meeting?

We do not know of any other matters that will be considered at the annual meeting. If any other matter is properly brought before the meeting, the proxies will be voted at the discretion of the proxy holders.

# What happens if the 2008 annual meeting is postponed or adjourned?

Your proxy will still be valid and may be voted at the postponed or adjourned meeting. You will still be able to change or revoke your proxy until it is voted.

### Who can attend the 2008 annual meeting?

You must be a shareholder to attend the annual meeting. See "How do I vote?" above for requirements for meeting attendance. In addition, if you represent an entity that is a holder of Fannie Mae common stock on the Record Date, you must present evidence of your authority to act as the legal representative for that entity.

## If I cannot attend the 2008 annual meeting in person, will it be Web cast?

Yes, there will be a live audio Web cast of the annual meeting at <a href="www.fanniemae.com">www.fanniemae.com</a>. Note that you must be a shareholder and present in person at the annual meeting to ask questions. The Web cast of the annual meeting will be available for 30 days after the meeting.

### CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

### **Corporate Governance Practices**

The Board and management of Fannie Mae continually monitor the latest developments in corporate governance, as well as the most recent laws, rules, and regulations so that the Company adopts the latest and best corporate governance practices. Some examples of our practices include:

- structuring the Board so that all but one of our directors (our Chief Executive Officer) are independent;
- separating the roles of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer;
- establishing stock ownership requirements for our senior executives and stock ownership guidelines for our nonmanagement directors; and
- adopting majority vote standards for elections of directors.

We continue to evaluate legal and regulatory requirements and emerging best practices and will adopt them as appropriate.

Our corporate governance materials, including our Corporate Governance Guidelines ("Guidelines"), Codes of Conduct, and Board committee charters are available on our Web site at <a href="www.fanniemae.com">www.fanniemae.com</a>, under "Corporate Governance." These materials are also available in print to any shareholder upon request. The Board regularly reviews corporate governance developments and modifies our Guidelines, committee charters, and key practices as warranted.

#### **Codes of Conduct**

We have a Code of Conduct and all of our employees, including our officers, are required to read and certify their compliance with the Code of Conduct annually. Our employee Code of Conduct includes the code of ethics for chief executive officers and senior financial officers that is described in the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 and provided for in the implementing regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission ("SEC"). We also have a Code of Conduct and Conflicts of Interest Policy for Members of the Board of Directors. Directors are required to read and certify their compliance with this code annually.

We will post on our Web site any change to or waiver from the employee Code of Conduct for any of our executive officers and any change to or waiver from the Code of Conduct and Conflict of Interests Policy for Members of the Board of Directors for any of our directors.

# **Director Independence**

We believe that a central component of good corporate governance is having a Board that is composed of a substantial majority of directors who are independent from management. The Board of Directors has adopted standards for director independence that meet, and in some respects exceed, those of the NYSE.

Even if no relationship or transaction exists that would disqualify a director from being "independent" under these standards, the Board does not consider a director to be "independent" unless the Board affirmatively makes a determination that the director has no material relationship with Fannie Mae, either directly or through an organization that has a material relationship with us. A relationship is "material" if, in the judgment of the Board, it would interfere with the director's independent judgment. In addition, under the NYSE's listing requirements for audit committees, members of a company's audit committee must meet additional, heightened independence criteria. Our own independence standards, which are included in our Guidelines, require all of our independent directors to meet these more rigorous criteria.

The independence standards for our directors, which are included in the Guidelines, are set forth below.

*Employment.* A director will not be considered independent if, within the preceding five years:

- the director was employed by us; or
- an immediate family member of the director was employed by us as an executive officer;

Auditor Affiliation. A director will not be considered independent if:

- the director is a current partner or employee of our outside auditor, or within the preceding five years, was (but is no longer) a partner or employee of our outside auditor and personally worked on our audit within that time; or
- an immediate family member of the director is a current partner of our outside auditor, or is a current employee of our outside auditor participating in the firm's audit, assurance or tax compliance (but not tax planning) practice, or within the preceding five years, was (but is no longer) a partner or employee of our outside auditor and personally worked on our audit within that time.

Compensation Committee Interlocks. A director will not be considered independent if, within the preceding five years:

- the director was employed by a company other than Fannie Mae at a time when any of our current executive officers was a member of that company's compensation committee; or
- an immediate family member of the director was employed as an officer by a company other than Fannie Mae at a time when any of our current executive officers was a member of that company's compensation committee.

Compensation. A director will not be considered independent if, within the preceding five years:

- the director received any compensation from us, directly or indirectly, other than fees for service as a director; or
- an immediate family member of the director received any compensation from us, directly or indirectly, other than compensation received for service as a non-executive employee of our company.

Business Relationships. A director will not be considered independent if:

- the director is a current executive officer, employee, controlling shareholder, or partner of an entity that does or did business with us if, within the preceding five years, we made payments to, or received payments from, that entity, and, in any single fiscal year, those payments exceeded \$1,000,000 or 2% of the entity's consolidated gross annual revenues, whichever is greater; or
- an immediate family member of the director is a current executive officer of a corporation or other entity that does or did business with us if, within the preceding five years, we made payments to, or received payments from, the entity that, in any single fiscal year were in excess of \$1,000,000 or 2% of the entity's consolidated gross annual revenues, whichever is greater.

Charitable Contributions. A director will not be considered independent if the director or the director's spouse is an executive officer, employee, director, or trustee of a nonprofit organization to which we or the Fannie Mae Foundation makes or has made contributions within the preceding three years that, in a single year, were in excess of 5% of the organization's consolidated gross annual revenues, or \$100,000, whichever is less. Amounts contributed under our matching gifts program are not included in the contributions calculated for purposes of this standard.

Our independence standards also provide that, after considering the relevant facts and circumstances, our Board may determine in its judgment that a director is independent (in other words, the director has no relationship with us that would interfere with the director's independent judgment), even though the director does not meet the standards listed above, as long as the determination of independence is consistent with the NYSE definition of "independence." If neither our Guidelines nor the NYSE independence requirements address a particular relationship, the determination of whether the relationship is material, and whether a director is independent, will be made by our Board, based upon the recommendation of the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee.

Our Board of Directors, with the assistance of the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee, has reviewed the independence of all current Board members under the listing standards of the NYSE, and the standards of independence adopted by the Board contained in our Guidelines, as outlined above. Based on its

review, the Board has affirmatively determined that all of our independent directors meet the director independence standards of our Guidelines and the NYSE, and that each of the following 11 directors is independent: Stephen B. Ashley, the non-executive Chairman, Dennis R. Beresford, Louis J. Freeh, Brenda J. Gaines, Karen N. Horn, Bridget A. Macaskill, Leslie Rahl, John C. Sites, Jr., Greg C. Smith, H. Patrick Swygert, and John K. Wulff.

In determining the independence of each of our Board members, the Board of Directors considered the following relationships in addition to those addressed by the standards contained in our Guidelines as set forth above:

- Our payments of substantially less than \$1,000,000, pursuant to our bylaws and indemnification obligations, of legal fees to a law firm with which Ms. Rahl's husband is a partner, as a result of the law firm's representation of Ms. Rahl in connection with various lawsuits and regulatory investigations arising from Ms. Rahl's service on our Board:
- Mr. Sites' role as a partner of a financial institution that could in the future invest in mortgage businesses or mortgages;
- Contributions totaling less than \$100,000 in each of 2005, 2006, and 2007 by us and/or the Fannie Mae Foundation to Howard University, where Mr. Swygert serves as President, and to the Smithsonian Institution, with which Mr. Swygert is affiliated; and
- Mr. Wulff's service as an independent director of Moody's Corporation, which provides specific research and investor services to us, and for which we make payments of substantially less than 2% of Moody's and our consolidated gross annual revenues.

Mr. Mudd is not considered an independent director under the Guidelines because of his position as our Chief Executive Officer.

### **Executive Sessions**

Our non-management directors meet regularly in executive session without management present. Time for an executive session is reserved at every regularly scheduled Board meeting. Stephen B. Ashley, in his capacity as Chairman of the Board, presides over these sessions. During 2007, our non-management directors met 12 times in executive session.

### **Certain Transactions and Relationships**

Policies and Procedures Relating to Transactions with Related Persons. We review relationships and transactions in which we are a participant and in which any of our directors or executive officers, or an immediate family member of either, has an interest to determine whether any of those persons has a material interest in the relationship or transaction. Our current written policies and procedures for review, approval, or ratification of relationships or transactions with related persons are set forth in our:

- Code of Conduct and Conflicts of Interest Policy for Members of the Board of Directors;
- Board of Directors' delegation of authorities and reservation of powers;
- Code of Conduct for employees;
- Conflict of Interest Policy and Conflict of Interest Procedure for employees; and
- Employment of Relatives Practice.

Our Code of Conduct and Conflicts of Interest Policy for Members of the Board of Directors prohibits our directors from engaging in any conduct or activity that is inconsistent with our best interests. It requires each of our directors to excuse himself or herself from voting on any issue before the Board that could result in a conflict, self-dealing, or other circumstance wherein his or her position as a director would be detrimental to us or result in a non-competitive, favored, or unfair advantage to either the director or the director's associates. In addition, our directors must disclose to the Chair of the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee,

or another member of the committee, any situation that involves or appears to involve a conflict of interest. This includes, for example, any financial interest of a director, an immediate family member of a director, or a business associate of a director in any transaction being considered by the Board, as well as any financial interest a director may have in an organization doing business with us.

Our Board's delegation of authorities and reservation of powers requires the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee of the Board of Directors to review and approve any transaction with any current director, director nominee, or executive officer or any immediate family member of a current director, director nominee, or executive officer, that is required to be disclosed under the SEC rules as a related party transaction.

Our Code of Conduct for employees requires that we and our employees seek to avoid any actual or apparent conflict between our business interests and the personal interests of our employees or their relatives or associates. An employee who knows or suspects a violation of our Code of Conduct must raise the issue with the employee's manager, another appropriate member of management, a member of our Human Resources division, or our Compliance and Ethics division.

Under our Conflict of Interest Policy and Conflict of Interest Procedure for employees, an employee who has a potential conflict of interest must request review and approval of the conflict. Conflicts requiring review and approval include situations where the employee or a close relative of the employee has (1) a financial interest worth more than \$100,000 in an entity that does business, seeks to do business, or competes with us or (2) a financial interest worth more than \$10,000 in such an entity combined with the ability to control or influence our relationship with the entity. In accordance with its charter, our Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee, in the case of potential conflicts involving our Chief Executive Officer, Chief Business Officer, Chief Operating Officer, Chief Financial Officer, Chief Risk Officer, General Counsel, Chief Audit Executive, or Chief Compliance Officer, must determine whether a conflict exists, any required steps to address the conflict, and whether or not to grant a waiver of the conflict under our Conflict of Interest Policy. In the case of conflicts involving other executive officers, our Chief Executive Officer makes the determination.

Our Employment of Relatives Practice prohibits, among other things, situations where an employee would exercise influence, control, or authority over the employee's relative's areas of responsibility or terms of employment, including but not limited to job responsibilities, performance ratings, or compensation. Employees have an obligation to disclose the existence of any relation to another current employee prior to applying for any position or engaging in any other work situation that may give rise to prohibited influence, control, or authority.

We require our directors and executive officers, not less than annually, to describe to us any situation involving a transaction with us in which a director or executive officer could potentially have a personal interest that would require disclosure under the SEC rules as a related party transaction.

Transactions with 5% Shareholders. Citigroup Inc. ("Citigroup") beneficially owned more than 5% of the outstanding shares of our common stock during 2007. During 2007, we engaged in securities and other financial instrument transactions in the ordinary course of business with Citigroup and its affiliates. We have extensive, multibillion dollar relationships with Citigroup. During 2007, Citigroup and/or its affiliates engaged in some or all of the following types of transactions and activities: distributing our debt securities as a dealer; committing to sell or buy mortgage-related securities or mortgage loans as a dealer; delivering mortgage loans to us for purchase by our mortgage portfolio or for securitization into Fannie Mae mortgage-backed securities; issuing investments held in our liquid investment portfolio; and acting as a derivatives counterparty or a counterparty involved in other financial instrument or investment transactions with us.

Alliance Capital Management L.P. and AllianceBernstein L.P. may have beneficially owned more than 5% of the outstanding shares of our common stock during 2007, through their management of shares reported as beneficially owned by AXA and its related entities. Until November 2007, a majority of the assets in the Fannie Mae Retirement Plan were managed by Alliance Capital Management L.P. and AllianceBernstein L.P.

These transactions with our 5% shareholders did not require review, approval, or ratification under any of our policies and procedures relating to transactions with related persons. All of these transactions were on

substantially the same terms as those prevailing at the time for comparable transactions with unrelated third parties.

Transactions with The Duberstein Group. Kenneth Duberstein, a former director of Fannie Mae, is Chairman and Chief Executive Officer and a stockholder of The Duberstein Group, Inc., an independent strategic planning and consulting firm that has provided services to us since 1991. The Duberstein Group previously provided us consulting services related to legislative and regulatory issues, and associated matters. Under that agreement, the firm provided services on an annual fixed-fee basis of \$375,000. We entered into a new agreement with the Duberstein Group in June 2007 under which the firm provides us consulting services related to industry and trade issues. Under our new agreement, we pay an annual fixed fee of \$400,000. The fees we paid to The Duberstein Group in 2007 are included in the "2007 Non-Employee Director Compensation Table" under "Proposal 1: Election of Directors—Directors' Compensation."

Our entry into a new agreement with The Duberstein Group in 2007 was not considered by the Chair of our Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee, nor did it require approval by our Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee under our Board's delegation of authorities and reservation of powers because, at the time we entered into the new agreement, Mr. Duberstein was no longer a Fannie Mae director. Our relationship with Mr. Duberstein's firm under our previous agreement was disclosed to the Chair of our Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee in 2006 but did not require approval by our Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee under our Board's delegation of authorities and reservation of powers because they had not yet been implemented.

Employment Relationships. Barbara Spector, the sister of Robert J. Levin, who is our Chief Business Officer, is a non-officer employee in our Technology division. The Technology division does not report, nor has it ever reported, to Mr. Levin. From January 1, 2007 through February 29, 2008, we paid or awarded Ms. Spector approximately \$158,000 in salary and cash bonuses for her services during that period. She also receives benefits under our compensation and benefit plans that are generally available to our employees, including our retirement plan.

Rebecca Senhauser, the wife of William Senhauser, our Chief Compliance Officer, served as a Senior Vice President in our Housing and Community Development division until July 31, 2007. The Housing and Community Development division never reported to Mr. Senhauser. Mr. and Ms. Senhauser recused themselves from any matters that might have directly and significantly affected the other, including compensation and performance evaluation matters. For her services from January 1, 2007 through July 31, 2007, we paid or awarded Ms. Senhauser approximately \$209,000 in salary. In November 2007 and January 2008, Ms. Senhauser also received an aggregate of 3,965 shares under our performance share program, or PSP, for the unpaid three-year cycles that ended on December 31, 2005 and December 31, 2006. Ms. Senhauser received benefits under our compensation and benefit plans that are generally available to our employees, including our retirement plan. As a member of senior management, she also received benefits under our compensation and benefit plans available to senior officers. including participation in the Supplemental Pension Plan and 2003 Supplemental Pension Plan and participation in our elective deferred compensation plan. In July 2007, Ms. Senhauser entered into a separation agreement with us under our management severance program. Under the terms of her separation agreement, Ms. Senhauser received early payment of approximately \$154,000 in previously awarded but unpaid cash bonuses and gave up approximately \$158,000 in previously awarded but unpaid cash bonuses as a result of her termination of employment. In addition, she became entitled to early vesting of 8,125 shares of restricted stock and payment of 1,439 shares of common stock under our PSP; she forfeited 8,439 shares of restricted stock. Pursuant to her separation agreement, Ms. Senhauser also received a cash bonus of \$226,111 for 2007 under our annual incentive plan, based on corporate performance and prorated for her seven months of service during 2007. Under her separation agreement, Ms. Senhauser also received a severance payment of approximately \$396,000, accelerated vesting of options to purchase 4,770 shares of our common stock, medical coverage worth up to an estimated \$21,000 and up to \$18,000 in outplacement services.

Other than the terms of Ms. Senhauser's separation agreement, which were approved by the Board's Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee, our employment relationship with and compensation of

Mr. Levin's sister and Mr. Senhauser's wife did not require review or approval under any of our policies and procedures relating to transactions with related persons.

### **Communications with Directors**

Interested parties wishing to communicate any concerns or questions about the company to the non-executive Chairman of the Board or to our non-management directors as a group may do so by electronic mail addressed to "board@fanniemae.com," or by U.S. mail addressed to Fannie Mae Directors, c/o Office of the Corporate Secretary, Fannie Mae, Mail Stop 1H 2S/05, 3900 Wisconsin Avenue NW, Washington, DC 20016-2892. Communications may be addressed to a specific director or directors, or to our independent directors as a group.

The Office of the Corporate Secretary is responsible for processing all communications to a director or directors. Communications that are commercial solicitations, ordinary course customer inquiries or complaints, incoherent, or obscene, will not be forwarded to the Board.

### STOCK OWNERSHIP

### **Beneficial Ownership Table**

The following table shows the beneficial ownership of our common stock by each of our current directors, director nominees, and certain executive officers, and all current directors, director nominees, and current executive officers as a group, as of March 21, 2008, unless otherwise indicated. As of that date, neither any director, director nominee, or executive officer, nor all directors, director nominees, and executive officers as a group, owned as much as 1% of our outstanding common stock.

	Amount and Nature of Beneficial Ownership <sup>(1)</sup>				
Name and Position	Common Stock Beneficially Owned Excluding Stock Options	Stock Options Exercisable and Other Shares Obtainable Within 60 Days of March 21, 2008 <sup>(2)</sup>	Total Common Stock Beneficially Owned		
Stephen B. Ashley <sup>(3)</sup>	21,747	25,000	46,747		
Chairman of the Board of Directors					
Dennis R. Beresford	4,719	0	4,719		
Director					
Robert T. Blakely <sup>(4)</sup>	87,531	0	87,531		
Former Executive Vice President and					
Former Chief Financial Officer		_			
Louis J. Freeh	0	0	0		
Director	40-				
Brenda J. Gaines	487	0	487		
Director	1 170	0	1 170		
Karen N. Horn	1,172	0	1,172		
Director Robert J. Levin <sup>(5)</sup>	(27.571	400 745	1.046.216		
Executive Vice President and Chief Business	637,571	408,745	1,046,316		
Officer					
Bridget A. Macaskill <sup>(6)</sup>	6,062	0	6,062		
Director	0,002	O .	0,002		
Daniel H. Mudd <sup>(7)</sup>	690,376	597,156	1,287,532		
President and Chief Executive Officer	,	,	, ,		
Peter S. Niculescu <sup>(8)</sup>	241,123	192,344	433,467		
Executive Vice President—Capital Markets					
Leslie Rahl <sup>(9)</sup>	8,281	4,333	12,614		
Director					

	Amount and Nature of Beneficial Ownership (1)					
	Stock Options Exercisable and					
Name and Position	Common Stock Beneficially Owned Excluding Stock Options	Other Shares Obtainable Within 60 Days of March 21, 2008 <sup>(2)</sup>	Total Common Stock Beneficially Owned			
John C. Sites, Jr.	5,500	0	5,500			
Director						
Greg C. Smith	1,612	499	2,111			
Director						
Stephen M. Swad <sup>(10)</sup> Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer	182,655	0	182,655			
H. Patrick Swygert Director	3,582	10,833	14,415			
Michael J. Williams <sup>(11)</sup> Executive Vice President and Chief Operating Officer	369,371	276,201	645,572			
John K. Wulff Director	11,887	1,500	13,387			
All Directors and executive officers as a group (23 persons) <sup>(12)</sup>	3,000,539	1,946,818	4,947,357			

Amount and Natura of Ranaficial Ownershin(1)

- (1) Beneficial ownership is determined in accordance with the rules of the SEC for computing the number of shares of common stock beneficially owned by each person and the percentage owned. Holders of restricted stock have no investment power but have sole voting power over the shares and, accordingly, these shares are included in this table. Because holders of shares through our Employee Stock Ownership Plan, or ESOP, have voting power over the shares, these shares are also included in this table. Additionally, although holders of shares through our ESOP have voting power through the power to direct the trustee of the plan to vote their shares, to the extent some holders do not provide any direction as to how to vote their shares, the plan trustee may vote those shares in the same proportion as the trustee votes the shares for which the trustee has received direction. Holders of shares through our ESOP have no investment power unless they are at least 55 years of age and have at least 10 years of participation in the ESOP. Holders of stock options have no investment or voting power over the shares issuable upon the exercise of the options until the options are exercised. Shares issuable upon the vesting of restricted stock units are not considered to be beneficially owned under applicable SEC rules and, accordingly, restricted stock units are not included in the amounts shown.
- (2) The shares included in this column are not currently outstanding but are issuable within 60 days of the Record Date and consist of shares issuable upon the exercise of outstanding stock options and other shares issuable within 60 days. These other shares consist of 70,797 shares issuable upon the exercise of outstanding stock options held by the spouse of one of our executive officers; and 1,346 shares of deferred stock held by Mr. Williams, which he could obtain within 60 days in certain circumstances.
- (3) Mr. Ashley's shares include 1,200 shares held by his spouse.
- (4) Mr. Blakely retired from Fannie Mae in January 2008. Information about Mr. Blakely's holdings is based on a Form 4 filed by Mr. Blakely on January 8, 2008 regarding his shares held as of January 4, 2008.
- (5) Mr. Levin's shares consist of 317,396 shares held jointly with his spouse and 320,175 shares of restricted stock.
- (6) Ms. Macaskill's shares include 5,000 shares held by a family trust of which she is a trustee.
- (7) Mr. Mudd's shares include 129,819 shares held jointly with his spouse and 485,517 shares of restricted stock. Mr. Mudd must continue to hold a portion of his shares of common stock until his employment is terminated. This holding requirement applies to 31,334 shares, net of any shares withheld to pay withholding tax liability upon the vesting of 26,476 of these shares that have not yet vested.
- (8) Mr. Niculescu's shares include 62,541 shares held jointly with his spouse, 243 shares held through our ESOP, and 135,693 shares of restricted stock.
- (9) Ms. Rahl's shares include 200 shares held by her spouse.
- (10) Mr. Swad's shares consist of 3,000 shares held jointly with his spouse, 153 shares held jointly with his brother and 179,502 shares of restricted stock.
- (11) Mr. Williams' shares include 111,541 shares held jointly with his spouse, 700 shares held by his daughter, 903 shares held through our ESOP and 249,028 shares of restricted stock.

The amount of shares held by all directors and executive officers as a group includes 2,005,796 shares of restricted stock held by our directors and executive officers; 634,361 shares they hold jointly with others; 22,778 shares held by family members of our directors and executive officers; 4,777 shares held by our executive officers through our ESOP; and 735 shares held through our ESOP by an executive officer's spouse. The shares in this table do not include 90,564 shares of restricted stock units over which the holder will not obtain voting rights or investment power until the restrictions lapse.

The following table shows information about the beneficial ownership of our common stock by each holder of more than 5% of our common stock as of December 31, 2007.

5% Holders	Common Stock Beneficially Owned	Percent of Class
Capital Research Global Investors <sup>(1)</sup>	117,477,960	12.0%
333 South Hope Street		
Los Angeles, CA 90071		
Capital World Investors <sup>(2)</sup>	110,809,400	11.3%
333 South Hope Street		
Los Angeles, CA 90071		

- (1) This information is based solely on information contained on a Schedule 13G filed with the SEC on January 10, 2008 by Capital Research Global Investors. According to the Schedule 13G, Capital Research Global Investors beneficially owned 117,477,960 shares of our common stock as of December 31, 2007, with sole voting power for 50,810,660 shares and sole dispositive power for all shares. Capital Research Global Investors' shares include 1,790 shares from the assumed conversion of 1,790 shares of our convertible preferred stock.
- (2) This information is based solely on information contained on a Schedule 13G filed with the SEC on January 10, 2008 by Capital World Investors. According to the Schedule 13G, Capital World Investors beneficially owned 110,809,400 shares of our common stock as of December 31, 2007, with sole voting power for 11,648,760 shares and sole dispositive power for all shares. Capital World Investors' shares include 2,040 shares from the assumed conversion of 2,040 shares of our convertible preferred stock.

### Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance

Our directors and officers file with the SEC reports on their ownership of our stock and on changes in their stock ownership. Based on a review of forms filed during 2007 or with respect to 2007 and on written representations from our directors and officers, we believe that all of our directors and officers filed all required reports and reported all transactions reportable during 2007, except that each of Mr. Kenneth Bacon, Ms. Linda Knight, Mr. Levin, Mr. Thomas Lund, Mr. Mudd, Mr. Niculescu, Mr. Senhauser, and Mr. Williams reported one transaction late in September 2007.

# **EQUITY COMPENSATION PLAN INFORMATION**

The following table provides information as of December 31, 2007 with respect to shares of common stock that may be issued under our existing equity compensation plans.

	<b>As of December 31, 2007</b>					
	Number of		Number of Securities			
	Securities to		Remaining Available			
	be Issued upon	Weighted-Average	for Future Issuance			
	Exercise	Exercise Price	under Equity			
	of Outstanding Options,	of Outstanding Options,	Compensation Plans (Excluding Securities			
	Warrants and	Warrants and	Reflected in			
Plan Category	Rights (#)	Rights (\$)	First Column) (#)			
Equity compensation plans approved by stockholders	17,508,316(1)	\$71.90(2)	42,105,844 <sup>(3)</sup>			
Equity compensation plans not approved by						
stockholders	N/A	N/A	<u>N/A</u>			
Total	17,508,316	\$ <u>71.90</u>	42,105,844			

<sup>(1)</sup> This amount includes outstanding stock options; restricted stock units; shares issuable upon the payout of deferred stock balances; and the maximum number of shares that may be issued pursuant to performance share program awards that have been made to members of senior management for which a payout determination has been made but for which the shares were not paid out as of December 31, 2007. Outstanding awards, options, and rights include grants under the Stock Compensation Plan of 1993 ("1993 Plan"), the Stock Compensation Plan of 2003 ("2003 Plan"), and the payout of shares deferred upon the settlement of awards made under the 1993 Plan and a prior plan.

<sup>(2)</sup> The weighted average exercise price is calculated for the outstanding options and does not take into account restricted stock units, deferred shares, or the performance shares described in footnote (1).

<sup>(3)</sup> This number of shares consists of 11,960,258 shares available under the 1985 Employee Stock Purchase Plan and 30,145,586 shares available under the 2003 Plan that may be issued as restricted stock, stock bonuses, stock options, or in settlement of restricted stock units, performance share program awards, stock appreciation rights or other stock-based awards. No more than 1,433,784 of the shares issuable under the 2003 Plan may be issued as restricted stock or restricted stock units vesting in full in fewer than three years, performance shares with a performance period of less than one year, or bonus shares subject to similar vesting provisions or performance periods.

### PROPOSAL 1: ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

### Composition of the Board of Directors

Under the Charter Act, our Board of Directors consists of 18 directors, five of whom are appointed by the President of the United States, with the remainder elected by shareholders. The terms of office of the most recent Presidential appointees to Fannie Mae's Board expired on May 25, 2004, and the President has not reappointed or replaced any of them. Pursuant to the Charter Act, those five Board positions will remain open unless and until the President names new appointees.

We engage a third-party executive search firm to identify potential director nominees. In addition, members of our Board of Directors and members of our executive management from time to time recommend a person for consideration as a potential director nominee. All potential director nominees are then evaluated by the third-party executive search firm, and we also engage outside counsel to help evaluate the independence of potential director nominees.

The Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee recommends nominees for election as Fannie Mae directors to the Board for consideration. Guidelines for the consideration of all director candidates are contained in the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee charter and in our Guidelines, and there is no separate policy governing the consideration of director candidates recommended by shareholders.

It is the policy of the Board that a substantial majority of the seated Fannie Mae directors will be independent, in accordance with the standards adopted by the Board. In addition, the Board, as a group, must be knowledgeable in business, finance, capital markets, accounting, risk management, public policy, mortgage lending, real estate, low-income housing, homebuilding, regulation of financial institutions, and any other areas that may be relevant to the safe and sound operation of Fannie Mae. The Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee seeks out Board members who possess:

- the highest personal values, judgment, and integrity;
- an understanding of the regulatory and policy environment in which Fannie Mae does its business; and
- diverse experience in the key business, financial, and other challenges that face a major American enterprise.

The Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee also considers whether a prospective candidate for the Board has the ability to attend meetings and fully participate in the activities of the Board, including whether the candidate's service on outside boards will permit the candidate sufficient time to devote to responsibilities associated with being a Fannie Mae director.

In considering members of the Board for re-nomination, the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee takes into consideration:

- a director's previous contribution to the effective functioning of Fannie Mae;
- any change during the past year in the director's principal area of responsibility with his or her company or in his or her employment;
- the director's retirement during the past year from his or her principal area of responsibility with his or her company;
- whether the director continues to bring relevant experience to the Board;
- whether the director has the ability to attend meetings and fully participate in the activities of the Board;
- whether the director has developed any relationships with Fannie Mae or another organization, or other circumstances have arisen, that might make it inappropriate for the director to continue serving on the Board; and
- the director's age and length of service on the Board.

Upon the recommendation of the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee, the Board of Directors has nominated the 12 persons identified below to stand for election at the 2008 annual meeting. You may not vote for more than the number of nominees for election as directors. Under the Charter Act, each director is elected or appointed for a term ending on the date of our next shareholders' meeting. In accordance with the Charter Act and our bylaws, each nominee for director who is elected will serve a term ending on the date of the annual meeting of shareholders in 2009 and until the director's successor is chosen and qualified or, if earlier, until the director dies, resigns, retires, or is removed from office in accordance with the law.

There will be six vacancies on the Board of Directors after the meeting. As described above, only the U.S. President can fill five of these vacancies. There is one fewer nominee for director than the number of directors to be elected by shareholders under the Charter Act because we are still engaged in the process of identifying an appropriate and qualified candidate. If we find a qualified individual with appropriate skills to fill the vacancy, then we anticipate that, following the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee's recommendation of the candidate to serve as a director, the Board will appoint the person to fill the vacancy. The shareholders will not elect the candidate because, under the Charter Act, a vacancy on the Board may be filled by the affirmative vote of the majority of the directors then serving as directors. A director who is elected by the Board to fill a vacancy on the Board will serve as a director until the next annual meeting of shareholders and until the director's successor is chosen and qualified or, if earlier, until the director dies, resigns, retires, or is removed from office in accordance with the law.

Because the number of director nominees does not exceed the number of directors to be elected, each nominee for director will be elected if the votes cast *FOR* the director exceed the votes cast *AGAINST* the director. In addition, although our Board consists of 18 directors under the Charter Act, proxies cannot be voted for a greater number of persons than the 12 nominees named below under "Nominees for Election."

Each director nominee has consented to being named in this proxy statement and to serve if elected. If any nominee should become unwilling or unable to serve as a director, the proxy holders, in the absence of contrary instruction, will vote the proxies for the election of such persons as the Board of Directors designates. In addition, each director nominee has submitted a contingent irrevocable resignation that will become effective if the nominee does not receive a majority of the votes cast and, based on the recommendation of the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee of the Board, the Board decides to accept the nominee's resignation.

Any shareholder who wishes to submit a candidate for consideration by the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee should submit written notice as described below under "Shareholder Proposals and Director Nominations for 2009."

### **Nominees for Election**

The following section presents information provided by the nominees about their principal occupation, business experience, directorships, and other matters.

The Board of Directors recommends that shareholders vote <u>FOR</u> each of the nominees.

Name	and	Age
------	-----	-----

# Position, Principal Occupation, Business Experience and Directorships

### Stephen B. Ashley, 68

# Director of Fannie Mae since May 1995 and Chairman of Board since December 2004

# Chairman and Chief Executive Officer The Ashley Group

- Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of The Ashley Group, a group of commercial and multifamily real estate, brokerage and investment companies—1995 to present
- Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of Sibley Mortgage Corporation, a commercial, multifamily and single-family mortgage banking firm, and Sibley Real Estate Services, Inc.—1991 to 1995
- Other Directorships: Manning & Napier Fund, Inc. (Member, Audit Committee)
- Other Activities: Mortgage Bankers Association of America (past president)

### Dennis R. Beresford, 69

Director of Fannie Mae since May 2006

# Ernst & Young Executive Professor of Accounting J.M. Tull School of Accounting, Terry College of Business, University of Georgia

- Ernst & Young Executive Professor of Accounting, J.M. Tull School of Accounting, Terry College of Business, University of Georgia—1997 to present
- Chairman of the Financial Accounting Standards Board, or FASB, the designated organization in the private sector for establishing standards of financial accounting and reporting in the U.S.—1987 to 1997
- Ernst & Young LLP (including ten years as a Senior Partner and National Director of Accounting)—1961 to 1986
- Other Directorships: Kimberly-Clark Corporation (Chair, Audit Committee); Legg Mason, Inc. (Chair, Audit Committee)
- Other Activities: Member, SEC Advisory Committee on Improvements to Financial Reporting; certified public accountant

### Louis J. Freeh, 58

Director of Fannie Mae since May 2007

# Managing Partner Freeh Group International, LLC

- Managing Partner of Freeh Group International, LLC, a practice of former federal judges and former senior FBI leaders who provide legal, governance, investigative, litigation, and risk management services— January 2006 to present
- General Counsel, Corporate Secretary and Ethics Officer of MBNA Corporation, as well as Vice Chairman of MBNA America Bank N.A.— 2001 to January 2006
- Director of the Federal Bureau of Investigation (FBI)—1993 to 2001
- U.S. District Judge—Southern District of New York—1991 to 1993
- Other Directorships: Bristol-Myers Squibb Company (Member, Audit Committee, and Member, Directors and Corporate Governance Committee)

### Brenda J. Gaines, 58

Director of Fannie Mae since September 2006

### Retired

- Diners Club North America, a subsidiary of Citigroup (President and Chief Executive Officer from October 2002 until her retirement in April 2004; President—February 1999 to September 2002; and Various other positions—1988 to February 1999)
- Deputy Chief of Staff for the Mayor of the City of Chicago—1985 to 1987
- Chicago Commissioner of Housing—1983 to 1985
- Other Directorships: Office Depot (Chair, Audit Committee, and Member, Corporate Governance and Nominating Committee); NICOR, Inc. (Member, Corporate Governance Committee); Tenet Healthcare Corporation (Member, Audit Committee, and Member, Compensation Committee)

### Karen N. Horn, Ph.D., 64

Director of Fannie Mae since September 2006

# Senior Managing Director Brock Capital Group LLC

- Senior Managing Director of Brock Capital Group LLC, an advisory and investment firm—2003 to present
- Managing Director, Private Client Services of Marsh Inc., a subsidiary of Marsh & McLennan Companies—1999 until retirement in 2003
- Senior Managing Director and Head of International Private Banking of Bankers Trust Company—1996 to 1999
- Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of BankOne, Cleveland—1987 to 1996
- President of Federal Reserve Bank of Cleveland—1982 to 1987
- Other Directorships: Eli Lilly and Company (Chair, Compensation Committee, and Member, Directors and Corporate Governance Committee); Simon Property Group, Inc. (Chair, Governance Committee, and Member, Compensation Committee); all T. Rowe Price funds and trusts (Chair, Audit Committee); Norfolk Southern Corporation (Member, Governance and Nominating Committee, and Member, Finance Committee)
- Other Activities: Vice Chairman of U.S. Russia Investment Fund (a presidential appointment)

# Bridget A. Macaskill, 59

Director of Fannie Mae since December 2005

# Principal BAM Consulting LLC

- Principal of BAM Consulting LLC, an independent financial services consulting firm, which she founded—2003 to present
- Oppenheimer Funds, Inc. (Chairman of the Board—2000 to 2001), (Chief Executive Officer—1995 to 2001), (President—1991 to 2000)
- Other Directorships: Prudential plc (Chair, Remuneration Committee and Member, Nomination Committee); Scottish & Newcastle plc. (Member, Remuneration Committee and Member, Treasury Committee)
- Trusteeships: College Retirement Equities Fund (CREF); the TIAA-CREF Funds

### Daniel H. Mudd, 49

Director of Fannie Mae since February 2000

### Leslie Rahl, 57

Director of Fannie Mae since February 2004

John C. Sites, Jr., 56

Director of Fannie Mae since October 2007

# President and Chief Executive Officer Fannie Mae

- Fannie Mae (President and Chief Executive Officer—June 2005 to present), (Vice Chairman of Board of Directors and interim Chief Executive Officer—December 2004 to June 2005), (Vice Chairman and Chief Operating Officer—February 2000 to December 2004)
- Fannie Mae Foundation (Chairman of the Board since June 2005), (Interim Chairman of the Board—December 2004 to June 2005), (Vice Chairman—September 2003 to December 2004).
- President and Chief Executive Officer of GE Capital, Japan, a diversified financial services company and a wholly owned subsidiary of the General Electric Company from April 1999 to February 2000
- President of GE Capital, Asia Pacific—May 1996 to June 1999
- Other Directorships: Fortress Investment Group LLC (Chair, Nominating, Corporate Governance, and Conflicts Committee); Homes for Working Families

# President

# Capital Market Risk Advisors, Inc.

- President and Founder of Capital Market Risk Advisors, Inc., a financial advisory firm specializing in risk management, hedge funds and capital market strategy, from 1994 to present
- Citibank (Various positions—1972 to 1991, including nine years as Division Head, Derivatives Group—North America)
- Other Directorships: Canadian Imperial Bank of Commerce (CIBC) (Member, Risk Management Committee); the International Association of Financial Engineers; the Fischer Black Memorial Foundation
- Other Activities: International Swaps Dealers Association (former director)

General Partner Wexford Capital, LLC General Partner Rock Creek Partners II, Ltd

- Wexford Capital, LLC, an SEC registered investment advisor (General Partner—January 2008 to present), (Consultant—September 2006 to December 2007)
- General Partner of Rock Creek Partners II, Ltd, a private equity fund of Rock Creek Capital Advisors, an investment and advisory firm, from October 1997 to present
- General Partner of Daystar Special Situations Fund, a private equity fund, from January 1996 to August 2006
- Bear, Stearns and Co. (Various positions—1981 to 1995, including Executive Vice President & Member of the Board of Directors)

# Greg C. Smith, 56

Director of Fannie Mae since April 2005

# H. Patrick Swygert, 65

Director of Fannie Mae since January 2000

### John K. Wulff, 59

Director of Fannie Mae since December 2004

# Principal Greg C. Smith LLC

- Principal of Greg C. Smith LLC, a consulting firm with experience in financial service, automotive, and environmental markets, which he founded—June 2007 to present
- Ford Motor Company (Vice Chairman—October 2005 until retirement in March 2006), (Executive Vice President and President, The Americas,—2004 to 2005), (Group Vice President—2002 to 2004)
- Ford Motor Credit Company (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer— 2002 to 2004), (Chief Operating Officer—2001 to 2002), (President, Ford Credit North America—1997 to 2001)
- Other Directorships: Penske Corp (Member, Compensation Committee); Solutia Inc. (Member, Governance Committee, and Member, Audit and Finance Committee)
- Other Activities: American Financial Services Association (former Chairman)

# President Howard University

- President of Howard University—1995 to present. Mr. Swygert has announced that he will retire as President of Howard University in June 2008.
- Other Directorships: Hartford Financial Services Group, Inc. (Chairman, Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee; Member, Compensation and Personnel Committee; Member, Executive Committee); United Technologies Corporation (Member, Audit Committee, and Member, Committee on Nominations & Governance)
- Other Activities: Central Intelligence Agency External Advisory Board (member)

# **Chairman of the Board Hercules Incorporated**

- Hercules Incorporated, a manufacturer and supplier of specialty chemical products (Chairman of the Board—December 2003 to present), (Director—July 2003 to December 2003), (Interim Chairman—October 2003 to December 2003)
- Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) (member) from July 2001 until June 2003
- Chief Financial Officer of Union Carbide Corporation, a chemicals and polymers company from 1996 until 2001
- Other Directorships: Hercules Incorporated (Chairman of the Board); Sunoco, Inc. (Member, Audit Committee, and Member, Public Affairs Committee); Celanese Corporation (Chair, Compensation Committee); Moody's Corporation (Chair, Audit Committee and Member, Governance and Compensation Committee)

### **Meetings of the Board of Directors**

The Board of Directors met 22 times during 2007. During 2007, each of our current directors attended at least 75% of the total number of meetings of the Board of Directors and Board committees on which he or she served. We have a policy that all directors are expected to attend the annual meeting of shareholders in person. All 12 directors remaining in office after Fannie Mae's 2007 annual meeting of shareholders were in attendance at the meeting, except that Ms. Gaines was not in attendance due to a family medical emergency.

# **Committees of the Board of Directors**

The standing committees of the Board are:

- Audit Committee;
- Compensation Committee;
- Compliance Committee;
- Executive Committee;
- Housing and Community Finance Committee;
- Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee;
- · Risk Policy and Capital Committee; and
- Technology and Operations Committee.

All of the committees (other than the Executive Committee) consist entirely of independent directors. In addition, these committees are governed by written charters, copies of which are posted on our Web site, <a href="https://www.fanniemae.com">www.fanniemae.com</a>, under "Corporate Governance," and are available in print free of charge to any shareholder upon request.

The Audit Committee oversees:

- our accounting, reporting, and financial practices, including the integrity of our financial statements and internal control over financial reporting;
- our compliance with legal and regulatory requirements (in coordination with the Compliance Committee);
- the qualifications and independence of our outside auditors; and
- the performance of our internal audit function and our outside auditor.

The Audit Committee met 18 times in 2007.

The *Compensation Committee* discharges the responsibilities of the Board relating to compensation of our executives and among other things:

- oversees compensation policies and plans for officers and other management group employees and key compensation plans and benefit programs applicable to employees, to maintain adherence to our philosophy, competitive position, and obligations under the Charter Act;
- makes recommendations to the Board with respect to our incentive-compensation plans and stock-based plans that are subject to Board approval;
- reviews and approves corporate goals and objectives relevant to CEO compensation, evaluates the CEO's performance in light of those goals and objectives, and recommends to the independent members of the Board the CEO's compensation level based on this evaluation, consistent with our compensation philosophy;
- recommends to the Board corporate goals for measurement of performance and approves the determination of achievement against those goals;

- recommends to the Board the compensation of executive vice presidents, consistent with the corporation's compensation philosophy; and
- approves the compensation of senior vice presidents, consistent with the corporation's compensation philosophy.
  With respect to the compensation of the Chief Audit Executive and Chief Compliance Officer, the
  Compensation Committee takes into account the recommendation of the Audit Committee and the Compliance
  Committee, respectively.

The Compensation Committee met 11 times in 2007.

The *Compliance Committee* both monitors and coordinates our compliance with the provisions of the Consent Order entered into between the Office of Federal Housing Enterprise Oversight ("OFHEO") and Fannie Mae on May 23, 2006 (the "OFHEO Consent Order"), and oversees our compliance with legal and regulatory requirements. The Compliance Committee is also responsible under its charter for reviewing the employee Code of Conduct. The Compliance Committee met 6 times in 2007.

The *Executive Committee* has all the authority of the Board during the periods between Board meetings, except for certain specified powers listed in our bylaws. The Executive Committee did not meet in 2007.

The *Housing and Community Finance Committee* oversees our single-family mortgage, capital markets and housing and community development divisions, as well as the company's contribution to affordable housing and community development. In addition, the Housing and Community Finance Committee monitors public policy surrounding housing issues. The Housing and Community Finance Committee met 5 times in 2007.

The *Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee* proposes to the Board prospective candidates for consideration as nominees for election by the shareholders as Fannie Mae directors, develops and recommends to the Board corporate governance guidelines, and plays a leadership role in shaping the corporation's corporate governance. The Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee oversees the evaluation of the Board and its committees, including evaluating the adequacy and appropriateness of the content, format and distribution of the written information, and evaluating reports and other material provided to the Board. The Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee is responsible for overseeing compliance with the Code of Conduct and Conflicts of Interest Policy for Members of the Board of Directors. The Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee is also responsible for recommending compensation for non-management directors on the Board to the Board of Directors and reviews non-management director compensation once a year. The Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee met 7 times in 2007.

The *Risk Policy and Capital Committee* assists the Board in overseeing our capital management and risk management, including overseeing the management of credit risk, market risk, liquidity risk, and operational risk. The Risk Policy and Capital Committee met 16 times in 2007.

The *Technology and Operations Committee* provides oversight of Fannie Mae's technology and operations environment, including our infrastructure, organization, and key controls. The Technology and Operations Committee met 6 times in 2007.

The following table shows the current membership of each committee:

			Board Committee						
						Housing	Nominating	Risk	Technology
						and	and	Policy and	and
Board	Independent			~		Community		Capital	Operations
<u>Member</u>	Director	Audit	Compensation	Compliance	Executive	Finance	Governance	Committee	Committee
Stephen B. Ashley	X	X	X	X	Chair	X	X	X	X
Dennis R. Beresford*	X	Chair			X			X	
Louis J. Freeh	X		X	X		X			
Brenda J. Gaines	X		X	Chair	X	X			X
Karen N. Horn*	X	X					X	X	
Bridget A. Macaskill	X		Chair		X		X		
Daniel H. Mudd					X				
Leslie Rahl	X			X	X	X		Chair	
John C. Sites, Jr.	X					X		X	
Greg C. Smith*	X	X	X	X	X				Chair
H. Patrick Swygert	X				X	Chair	X	X	
John K. Wulff*	X	X			X		Chair		X

<sup>\*</sup> The Board has determined that Mr. Beresford, Ms. Horn, Mr. Smith, and Mr. Wulff have the requisite experience to qualify as "audit committee financial experts" under the rules and regulations of the SEC and has designated them as such. They, along with Mr. Ashley, are independent as independence for audit committee members is defined under the NYSE listing standards.

### **Directors' Compensation**

In 2007, our non-management directors received cash compensation and restricted stock awards that vested during the year as described in more detail below. The Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee reviews non-management director compensation once a year and makes recommendations for compensation of our non-management directors to the Board. Our Board determines cash compensation, and has the authority to vary the amount of equity compensation. To be consistent with the compensation philosophy applicable to senior management, total compensation for non-management directors is targeted at the median of companies in our comparator group. Compensation for the directors is designed to be reasonable, appropriate, and commensurate with the duties and responsibilities of their Board service. The Board uses the executive compensation consulting firm of Semler Brossy Consulting Group to provide director compensation information and advice.

The total 2007 compensation for our non-management directors is shown in the table below. Mr. Mudd, who is our only director who is an employee of Fannie Mae, does not receive the benefits provided to our non-management directors other than those provided under the Matching Gifts Program, which is available to all of our employees, and those available under the Director's Charitable Award Program.

2007 Non-Employee Director Compensation Table

Name	Fees Earned or Paid in Cash (\$) <sup>(1)</sup>	Stock Awards (\$) <sup>(2)</sup>	Option Awards (\$) <sup>(3)</sup>	All Other Compensation (\$) <sup>(4)</sup>	Total (\$)
Stephen B. Ashley	\$500,000	\$ 21,802	\$17,732	\$ 20,125	\$559,659
Dennis R. Beresford	138,300	13,980	· —	40,115	192,395
Kenneth M. Duberstein <sup>(5)</sup>	17,100	(26,090)	24,762	413,327	429,099
Louis J. Freeh	57,833	<u> </u>	_	17,099	74,932
Brenda J. Gaines	109,567	20,317	_	20,209	150,093
Karen N. Horn	132,500	20,317	_	27,732	180,549
Bridget A. Macaskill	110,500	8,595	_	21,303	140,398
Joe K. Pickett <sup>(5)</sup>	119,500	21,802	17,732	15,889	174,923
Leslie Rahl	127,800	22,510	17,732	20,310	188,352
John C. Sites, Jr.	23,833	_	_	19,014	42,847
Greg C. Smith	136,300	32,926	2,491	20,209	191,926
H. Patrick Swygert	117,100	21,802	17,732	39,549	196,183
John K. Wulff	129,800	18,253	9,038	25,052	182,143

<sup>(1)</sup> Mr. Duberstein, Ms. Rahl, and Mr. Swygert elected to defer all of their retainer and fees to later years.

- (2) No restricted stock was granted to our non-management directors during 2007. These amounts represent the dollar amounts we recognized for financial statement reporting purposes with respect to 2007 for the fair value of restricted stock granted during 2006 and in prior years in accordance with SFAS 123R. As required by SEC rules, the amounts shown exclude the impact of estimated forfeitures related to service-based vesting conditions. The value of the restricted stock awards is calculated as the average of the high and low trading price of our common stock on the date of grant. Mr. Duberstein resigned from our Board in February 2007 and, as a result, forfeited 650 shares of unvested restricted common stock. As of December 31, 2007, none of our non-management directors held shares of restricted stock because all restricted stock held by directors had vested by that date.
- (3) No director has received a stock option award since 2005. These amounts represent the dollar amounts we recognized for financial statement reporting purposes with respect to 2007 for the fair value of stock option awards granted during 2005 and in prior years in accordance with SFAS 123R. For the assumptions used in calculating the value of these awards, see "Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements—Note 1, Summary of Significant Accounting Policies—Stock-Based Compensation," in our annual report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2007. As of December 31, 2007, each of our directors held options to purchase the following number of shares of common stock, with exercise prices ranging from \$54.370 to \$79.218 per share and expiration dates ranging from February 15, 2008 to April 18, 2015: Mr. Ashley, 26,000 shares; Mr. Duberstein 4,000 shares; Mr. Pickett 28,000 shares; Ms. Rahl, 5,333 shares; Mr. Smith, 666 shares; Mr. Swygert, 11,833 shares; and Mr. Wulff, 2,000 shares. Mr. Beresford, Mr. Freeh, Ms. Gaines, Ms. Horn, Ms. Macaskill, and Mr. Sites have never been awarded Fannie Mae stock options.
- "All Other Compensation" consists of our estimated incremental cost of providing Board members benefits under our Director's Charitable Award Program, which is discussed in greater detail below. We estimate our incremental cost of providing this benefit for each director based on (1) the present value of our expected future payment of the benefit that became vested during 2007 and (2) the time value during 2007 of amounts vested for that director in prior years. We estimated the present values of our expected future payment based on the age and gender of our directors, the RP 2000 white collar mortality table projected to 2010, and a discount rate of approximately 5.5%. For Mr. Duberstein, our estimated cost for providing this benefit is \$13,327 and we have also included in "All Other Compensation" \$400,000 we paid to The Duberstein Group during 2007 for consulting services. This amount was paid to The Duberstein Group, not to Mr. Duberstein. Our transactions with The Duberstein Group are discussed more in "Corporate Governance—Certain Transactions and Relationships—Transactions with the Duberstein Group." Amounts shown under "All Other Compensation" do not include gifts made by the Fannie Mae Foundation under its matching gifts program, under which gifts made by our employees and directors to 501(c)(3) charities were matched, up to an aggregate total of \$10,000 in any calendar year. No amounts are included for this program because the matching gifts for 2007 were made by the Fannie Mae Foundation, not Fannie Mae. In addition, no amounts are included for a furnished apartment we lease near our corporate offices in Washington, DC for use by Mr. Ashley, the non-executive Chairman of our Board, when he is in town on company business. Provided that he reimburses us, Mr. Ashley is permitted to use the apartment up to twelve nights per year when he is in town but not on company business.
- (5) Mr. Duberstein resigned from our Board in February 2007. Mr. Pickett's term on the Board of Directors expired at the 2007 annual meeting on December 14, 2007.

Cash Compensation. During 2007, our non-management directors, with the exception of the non-executive Chairman of our Board, were paid a retainer at an annual rate of \$35,000, plus \$1,500 for attending each Board or Board committee meeting in person or by telephone. Committee chairs received an additional retainer at an annual rate of \$10,000, plus an additional \$500 for each committee meeting chaired in person and \$300 for each telephonic committee meeting chaired.

In recognition of the substantial amount of time and effort necessary to fulfill the duties of non-executive Chairman of the Board during 2007, Mr. Ashley received an annual fee of \$500,000.

Effective January 1, 2008, our non-management directors, with the exception of the non-executive Chairman of our Board, have been paid and will be paid a retainer at an annual rate of \$100,000, and meeting fees have been eliminated. Committee chairs receive an additional retainer at an annual rate of \$25,000 for the Audit Committee chair and \$15,000 for all other committee chairs. Mr. Ashley's annual fee remains \$500,000. Our Board has the authority to change or otherwise vary the amount of cash compensation to non-management directors.

Restricted Stock Awards. Prior to the amendment of the Fannie Mae Stock Compensation Plan of 2003 (the "2003 Plan") in 2007, an award of restricted stock to non-management directors was scheduled to be made immediately following the 2006 annual meeting. The award was to have a fair market value of \$75,000, and the shares were to vest on the day before each annual meeting at the rate of 25% each year. Directors who joined the Board before the next grant in 2010 were to receive a pro rata grant. In light of the restatement of our financial statements and its negative impact on Fannie Mae's shareholders, the non-management directors voluntarily agreed in 2007 to forgo this grant of restricted stock. The 2003 Plan as amended reflects the voluntary elimination of this grant.

Under the 2003 Plan as amended by shareholders at the annual meeting of shareholders in 2007, each non-management director will receive an annual grant of restricted stock units immediately following the annual meeting of shareholders, beginning with the annual meeting of shareholders in 2008. The aggregate fair market value on the date of grant in 2008 will equal \$135,000. The value of each annual grant in the future will continue to be \$135,000, unless the Board determines, prior to the annual meeting of shareholders for that year, that it will use a different value. A non-management director who is newly appointed or elected after an annual meeting of shareholders will receive a grant of restricted stock units prorated based on the number of full calendar months between the annual meeting of shareholders that took place immediately prior to the director's appointment or election and the date of the director's appointment or election.

Restricted stock units generally may not be sold, transferred, or encumbered. The restricted stock units granted under the 2003 Plan as amended will vest in full on the day before the next annual meeting of shareholders, but in no event later than one year after the grant. Unvested restricted stock units are subject to forfeiture if a director ceases to be a director for any reason other than death or disability.

The Compensation Committee has the authority to grant additional restricted stock and restricted stock unit awards to non-management directors based on market compensation data or other information or circumstances.

In October 2003, we granted 2,600 shares of restricted common stock to each non-management director who was a member of the Board at that time, scheduled to vest in four equal annual installments beginning with the May 2004 annual meeting. We subsequently made pro rata grants to non-management directors who joined the Board after October 2003 and prior to the scheduled time of the last vesting in May 2007. The last tranche of these grants vested in December 2007 with the annual meeting. As a result, as of December 31, 2007, none of our non-management directors held unvested shares of our common stock.

Stock Option Awards. Under the terms of the 2003 Plan prior to its amendment in 2007, each non-management director was granted an annual nonqualified stock option to purchase 4,000 shares of common stock immediately following the annual meeting of shareholders at the fair market value on the date of grant. In light of the restatement of our financial statements and its negative impact on Fannie Mae's shareholders, the non-management directors voluntarily agreed in 2007 to forgo the grant of annual stock option awards that would have been made following the annual meetings in 2005 and 2006, had they occurred, and which were

to be granted following the annual meeting in December 2007. In addition, under the 2003 Plan as amended, automatic annual option grants for future years have been discontinued.

The Compensation Committee has the authority to grant option awards to non-management directors as appropriate, based on market compensation data or other information or circumstances.

One-Time Supplemental Cash Retainer. In January 2008, the Board awarded our non-management directors, including Mr. Ashley, a one-time supplemental cash retainer during the period from January to May 2008 in the amount of \$56,250 in consideration of the transition to our new director compensation program. The amount of the one-time supplemental cash retainer is meant to be equivalent to the pro rata value of restricted stock units that would have vested under the new compensation program between January 2008 and May 2008 if an equity grant had been made under the program in January 2008. The Board's independent compensation consultant concurred that the award was reasonable and appropriate.

Deferred Compensation. Non-management directors may irrevocably elect to defer up to 100% of their annual retainer and all fees payable to them in their capacity as a member of the Board in any calendar year into the deferred compensation plan. Plan participants receive an investment return on the deferred funds as if the funds were invested in a hypothetical portfolio chosen by the participant from among the available investment options, which are described in more detail below under "Nonqualified Deferred Compensation—Elective Deferred Compensation Plans." Prior to the deferral, plan participants must elect to receive the deferred funds either (1) in a lump sum, (2) in approximately equal annual installments, or (3) in an initial payment followed by approximately equal annual installments, with a maximum of 15 installments. Deferral elections generally must be made prior to the year in which the compensation otherwise would have been paid, and payments will be made as specified in the deferral election. Participants in the plan are unsecured creditors and are paid from our general assets.

Under the 2003 Plan as amended, non-management directors are also able to elect to convert their cash retainer to deferred shares. In addition, non-management directors are generally able to elect to defer receipt of their annual award of restricted stock units. In either case, dividend equivalents for the vested deferred shares are credited to the director's account and reinvested in additional deferred shares. The deferred shares of common stock are paid to the director six months after the director ceases to be a director and separates from service on the Board.

Stock Ownership Guidelines for Directors. Under our Guidelines in 2007, each non-management director was expected to own shares of our common stock (including restricted stock, restricted stock units, or deferred shares) that have a total value equal to at least five times the annual cash retainer for service as a member of our Board (in 2007, five times \$35,000, or \$175,000). Directors had five years from the time of election or appointment to reach the expected ownership level, excluding trading blackout periods we impose. Effective January 1, 2008, the cash retainer for each non-management director increased to an annual rate of \$100,000. Therefore, directors have five years to increase the value of their common stock ownership from the current expected level of \$175,000 to \$500,000, excluding any company-wide blackout periods during which directors are prohibited from buying or selling Fannie Mae securities.

In addition, under our Guidelines, a non-management director may not sell or otherwise transfer shares of our common stock received pursuant to his or her service as a Board member (other than shares received in lieu of the director's annual cash retainer) until the earlier of when the director has served on the Board for a period of five years or when he or she leaves the Board.

Fannie Mae Director's Charitable Award Program. In 1992, we established our Director's Charitable Award Program. The purpose of the program is to acknowledge the service of our directors, recognize our own interest and that of our directors in supporting worthy institutions, and enhance our director benefit program to enable us to continue to attract and retain directors of the highest caliber. Under the program, we make donations upon the death of a director to up to five charitable organizations or educational institutions of the director's choice. We donate \$100,000 for every year of service by a director up to a maximum of \$1,000,000. To be eligible to receive a donation, a recommended organization must be an educational institution or charitable organization and must qualify to receive tax-deductible donations under the Internal Revenue Code

of 1986. The program is generally funded by life insurance contracts on the lives of participating current and former directors. The Board of Directors may elect to amend, suspend, or terminate the program at any time.

*Matching Gifts*. To further our support for charitable giving, non-employee directors are able to participate in our matching gifts program on the same terms as our employees.

Under this program, gifts made by employees and directors to 501(c)(3) charities are matched, up to an aggregate total of \$10,000 in any calendar year, including up to \$500 that may be matched on a 2-for-1 basis. Prior to 2008, matching gifts under the program were made by the Fannie Mae Foundation rather than Fannie Mae.

*Other Expenses.* We also pay for or reimburse directors for out-of-pocket expenses incurred in connection with their service on the Board, including travel to and from our meetings, accommodations, meals, and training.

### **EXECUTIVE OFFICERS**

Our executive officers, other than Daniel H. Mudd, who is a nominee for election to the Board of Directors and whose background is described above, have provided the following information about their principal occupation, business experience, and other matters.

### Kenneth J. Bacon, 53

# **Executive Vice President—Housing and Community Development**

- Fannie Mae
- Executive Vice President—Housing and Community Development since July 2005
- Interim Head of Housing and Community Development—January 2005 to July 2005
- Senior Vice President—Multifamily Lending and Investment—May 2000 to January 2005
- Senior Vice President—American Communities Fund—October 1999 to May 2000
- Senior Vice President of the Community Development Capital Corporation—August 1998 to October 1999
- Senior Vice President of Fannie Mae's Northeastern Regional Office in Philadelphia—May 1993 to August 1998
- Directorships: Fannie Mae Foundation since January 1995 (Vice Chairman since January 2005), Comcast Corporation, and Corporation for Supportive Housing
- Other Activities: Member of the Executive Leadership Council and the Real Estate Round Table

### Enrico Dallavecchia, 46

### **Executive Vice President and Chief Risk Officer**

- Executive Vice President and Chief Risk Officer since June 2006
- JP Morgan Chase (Head of Market Risk for Retail Financial Services, Chief Investment Office and Asset Wealth Management from April 2005 to May 2006) and (Market Risk Officer for Global Treasury, Retail Financial Services, Credit Cards and Proprietary Positioning Division and Co-head of Market Risk Technology from December 1998 to March 2005)

### Linda K. Knight, 58

### **Executive Vice President—Enterprise Operations**

- Fannie Mae
- Executive Vice President—Enterprise Operations since April 2007
- Executive Vice President—Capital Markets—March 2006 to April 2007
- Senior Vice President and Treasurer—February 1993 to March 2006
- Vice President and Assistant Treasurer—November 1986 to February 1993
- Director, Treasurer's Office—November 1984 to November 1986
- Assistant Director, Treasurer's Office—February 1984 to November 1984
- Senior Market Analyst—August 1982 to February 1984

## Robert J. Levin, 52

### **Executive Vice President and Chief Business Officer**

- Fannie Mae
- Executive Vice President and Chief Business Officer since November 2005
- Interim Chief Financial Officer—December 2004 to January 2006
- Executive Vice President of Housing and Community Development— June 1998 to December 2004
- Executive Vice President—Marketing—June 1990 to June 1998
- Fannie Mae Foundation (previously served as director and treasurer).

### Thomas A. Lund, 49

### Executive Vice President—Single-Family Mortgage Business

- Fannie Mae
- Executive Vice President—Single-Family Mortgage Business since July 2005
- Interim head of Single-Family Mortgage Business—January 2005 to July 2005
- Senior Vice President—Chief Acquisitions Office—January 2004 to January 2005
- Senior Vice President—Investor Channel—August 2000 to January 2004
- Senior Vice President—Southwestern Regional Office, Dallas, Texas—July 1996 to July 2000
- Vice President for Marketing—January 1995 to July 1996

### Rahul N. Merchant, 51

### **Executive Vice President and Chief Information Officer**

- Executive Vice President and Chief Information Officer since November 2006
- Merrill Lynch & Co. (Head of Technology from 2004 to 2006) and (Head of Global Business Technology, Global Markets and Investment Banking division, from 2000 to 2004)
- Executive Vice President of Dresdner, Kleinwort and Benson, a global investment bank—1998 to 2000
- Previously served as Senior Vice President of Sanwa Financial Products and First Vice President of Lehman Brothers, Inc.
- Other Activities: Board of Advisors of the American India Foundation

### Peter S. Niculescu, 48

### **Executive Vice President—Capital Markets**

- Fannie Mae
- Executive Vice President—Capital Markets (previously Mortgage Portfolio) since November 2002
- Senior Vice President—Portfolio Strategy—March 1999 to November 2002

### William B. Senhauser, 45

### Senior Vice President and Chief Compliance Officer

- Fannie Mae
- Senior Vice President and Chief Compliance Officer since December 2005
- Vice President for Regulatory Agreements and Restatement—October 2004 to December 2005
- Vice President for Operating Initiatives—January 2003 to September 2004
- Vice President, Deputy General Counsel—November 2000 to January 2003

## Stephen M. Swad, 46

## **Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer**

- Fannie Mae
- Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer since August 2007
- Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer Designate—May 2007 to August 2007
- Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of AOL, LLC— February 2003 to February 2007
- Executive Vice President of Finance and Administration of Turner Broadcasting System Inc.'s Turner Entertainment Group—April 2002 to February 2003
- Various corporate finance roles at Time Warner—1998 through 2002
- Previously served as a Partner in KPMG's national office and Deputy Chief Accountant at the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission

### Beth A. Wilkinson, 45

### **Executive Vice President—General Counsel and Corporate Secretary**

- Executive Vice President—General Counsel and Corporate Secretary since February 2006
- Partner and Co-Chair, White Collar Practice Group at Latham & Watkins LLP—1998 to 2006
- Department of Justice (prosecutor and special counsel for *U.S. v. McVeigh and Nichols*—1996 to 1998), (principal deputy of the Terrorism & Violent Crime Section—1995), and (Special Counsel to the Deputy Attorney General—1995 to 1996)
- Assistant U.S. Attorney in the Eastern District of New York—1991 to 1995
- Captain, U.S. Army (serving as an assistant to the general counsel of the Army for Intelligence & Special Operations)—1987 to 1991
- Other Activities: Board of Directors of Equal Justice Works

### Michael J. Williams, 50

# **Executive Vice President and Chief Operating Officer**

- Fannie Mae
- Executive Vice President and Chief Operating Officer since November 2005
- Executive Vice President for Regulatory Agreements and Restatement—February 2005 to November 2005
- President—Fannie Mae eBusiness—July 2000 to February 2005
- Senior Vice President—e-commerce—July 1999 to July 2000
- Various positions in Single-Family and Corporate Information Systems divisions—1991 to July 1999

Under our bylaws, each officer holds office until his or her successor is chosen and qualified or, if earlier, until he or she dies, resigns, retires, or is removed from office by the Board of Directors.

### EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

### **Compensation Discussion and Analysis**

### **Executive Summary**

2007 was a challenging year for Fannie Mae. We were and continue to be in the midst of a significant disruption in the housing and mortgage markets, and like other participants in the U.S. residential mortgage market, we have experienced adverse effects from this market disruption. In particular, our financial performance was severely and adversely affected by the challenges of the housing market and the tightening credit environment, although we were successful in generally meeting or exceeding the expectations for our other 2007 corporate performance goals.

Due to our poor financial performance in 2007, the Board determined that our named executives' total direct compensation (salary, annual cash bonus, and long-term incentive stock award) should generally reflect an overall decrease from their 2006 total direct compensation, while still rewarding our positive performance on our other important corporate goals. The Board's 2007 compensation decisions for our named executives also took into account the importance of retaining our management team, which delivered leadership, performance, and continuity in very adverse market conditions. The principles that the Board applied in making compensation determinations for 2007 are discussed below under "How did we determine the amount of each element of 2007 cash and stock compensation?"

### Our Named Executives for 2007

This Compensation Discussion and Analysis discusses the material elements of our compensation of our named executives for 2007, as identified below.

- Daniel Mudd. President and Chief Executive Officer
- Stephen Swad, Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer (Chief Financial Officer since August 2007)
- Robert Blakely, former Executive Vice President (Chief Financial Officer until August 2007)
- Robert Levin, Executive Vice President and Chief Business Officer
- Peter Niculescu, Executive Vice President—Capital Markets
- Michael Williams, Executive Vice President and Chief Operating Officer

### What are the objectives of our compensation program?

Our compensation philosophy for named executives is that our compensation program should attract, retain, and reward the skilled talent needed to successfully manage a leading financial services company. In addition, the Charter Act requires that a significant portion of potential compensation must be based on our performance.

Consistent with our compensation philosophy and the Charter Act, our compensation program is designed to:

- drive a "pay for performance" perspective that rewards company and individual performance, while supporting our mission to provide liquidity and stability in the secondary mortgage market and to help more families achieve homeownership;
- promote a long-term focus and align management's and shareholders' interests by providing a greater portion of compensation that is stock-based for more senior members of management, including for our named executives;
- foster compliance with legal and regulatory requirements; and
- provide compensation that is straightforward and easy to understand.

### How does comparability factor into our executive compensation decisions?

In accordance with our compensation philosophy, we maintain a comparator group, consisting of diversified financial services companies that we compete with for executive talent. In composing this group, primary consideration was given to the size, scope, and complexity of these companies and the business segments in which they operate. The members of the comparator group were initially identified by management's outside executive compensation consultant, Johnson Associates, Inc., and were reviewed by the Compensation Committee's independent executive compensation consultant, Semler Brossy Consulting Group. The composition of the comparator group was reviewed and approved by the Compensation Committee. We used the same comparator group in 2007 as we did in 2006.

The members of our comparator group for 2007 were:

Allstate Countrywide SunTrust Banks
American Express Freddie Mac U.S. Bancorp
American International Group JP Morgan Chase Wachovia

Bank of America MetLife Washington Mutual

Capital One National City Wells Fargo

Citigroup Prudential

Our executive compensation philosophy provides that we should consider as a guideline the market median, or 50th percentile, of the total direct compensation paid at companies similar to us. While the market median is used as the guideline for total direct compensation, the Compensation Committee and Board have the authority to pay compensation as they deem appropriate for each named executive. In addition, our compensation must be consistent with the Charter Act, which requires that compensation of our executives be reasonable and comparable with the compensation of executives performing similar duties in similar businesses.

# How do we use outside executive compensation consultants?

As described below, management has engaged Johnson Associates, Inc. to provide executive compensation consulting services, including providing market data for positions other than the chief executive officer. Semler Brossy Consulting Group, LLC provides compensation consulting services to the Board, including providing market data for the chief executive officer.

Johnson Associates, Inc. With respect to our named executives other than Mr. Mudd, management instructed Johnson Associates to provide market data to assist us in making recommendations for 2007 compensation. Johnson Associated provided us with compensation data for our comparator group. In addition, to establish a comprehensive view of compensation, Johnson Associates provided published survey data from a nationally recognized compensation consulting firm and Johnson Associates' proprietary client and market information. The published survey data consisted of aggregated compensation data from many companies, segregated by industry, size (as measured by revenue and/or assets), and job function. For the purpose of this Compensation Discussion and Analysis, "market data," when used with respect to the named executives other than Mr. Mudd, collectively refers to such comparator group data, survey data, and proprietary information provided by Johnson Associates.

Johnson Associates also analyzed the comparability of our compensation practices for our management, including our named executives other than Mr. Mudd, by reviewing each job relative to the market data. In addition, Johnson Associates provided us with data and analyses in connection with the hiring of Mr. Swad and the hiring and promotions of other management employees.

Johnson Associates also provided advice regarding our compensation programs for 2008. Johnson Associates provided no other services to us for 2007.

Semler Brossy Consulting Group, LLC. Under its charter, our Compensation Committee has the authority to retain advisors as it determines appropriate to assist it in the full performance of its functions. The Compensation Committee believes that the use of an independent consultant supports good corporate governance by allowing the Compensation Committee access to independent advice and recommendations

regarding executive compensation. Guidance issued by our regulator, OFHEO, also supports the engagement of a compensation consultant that is independent of management. Our Compensation Committee uses Semler Brossy as its independent executive compensation consultant, and Semler Brossy reports directly to the Compensation Committee. Semler Brossy advised the Compensation Committee on all significant aspects of 2007 compensation and benefits for our named executives and other members of senior management, as requested, and certain changes to our long-term incentive awards and retirement benefits for 2008.

With respect to 2007 compensation, Semler Brossy provided the Compensation Committee with data from our comparator group for CEO compensation. For the purpose of this Compensation Discussion and Analysis, "market data," when used with respect to Mr. Mudd, refers to CEO compensation data from our comparator group provided by Semler Brossy. Semler Brossy advised the Compensation Committee on the principal aspects of Mr. Mudd's compensation based on market data, its assessment of best practices in compensation, and Mr. Mudd's award history and outstanding equity awards. Semler Brossy also participated in discussions held by the Compensation Committee, and provided advice, with respect to setting the overall target percentages for 2007 cash bonuses and long-term incentive stock awards for the named executives and other members of management, and with respect to the Compensation Committee's determination of recommendations for 2007 compensation for each named executive and other members of management. In connection with providing this advice, at the request of the Compensation Committee, Semler Brossy reviewed market data provided by Johnson Associates with regard to 2007 compensation.

In 2007, Semler Brossy also advised the Board's Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee on the updated compensation structure for our non-management members of the Board that became effective in January 2008. Prior to making its recommendations to the Board, Semler Brossy provided the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee with a review of director compensation practices, both among our comparator group and in the broad market. Semler Brossy provided no other services to us for 2007.

### What were the elements of compensation for our named executives during 2007?

Compensation for our named executives for 2007 consisted of salaries, cash bonuses, long-term incentive stock awards, employee benefits, and perquisites. We provided this compensation mix in order to maintain a competitive compensation program and reinforce our corporate objectives. Salaries are determined at the beginning of the year or in connection with a new hire, while annual cash bonuses and long-term incentive stock awards are determined after the end of the year to which they relate.

Salaries, Cash Bonuses, and Long-Term Incentive Stock Awards.

- Salaries. Salary is the base component of compensation and is intended to reflect each named executive's level of responsibility and individual performance over time.
- Cash Bonuses. Cash bonuses for 2007 rewarded each named executive based on our 2007 performance measured against pre-established corporate performance goals, as described under "How did we determine the amount of each element of 2007 cash and stock compensation?"
  - From time to time we also use sign-on bonuses or guaranteed first-year bonus minimums to recruit executives with critical skills. In 2007, Mr. Swad received \$500,000 as a sign-on bonus in connection with his hire. In addition, we agreed that Mr. Swad's cash bonus for 2007 under our Annual Incentive Plan would not be prorated based on his hire date in May 2007.
- Long-Term Incentive Stock Awards. Long-term incentive stock awards are stock-based awards that vest over a period of years. We believe that providing a significant portion of senior management compensation, including compensation for our named executives, through long-term incentive stock awards based on our common stock and with a multi-year vesting schedule strengthens the alignment of long-term interests of our senior management with those of our other shareholders, reinforcing a shared interest in company performance.

From time to time we also use long-term incentive stock awards to recruit executives with critical skills. In 2007, Mr. Swad received a grant of 80,000 restricted shares in connection with his hire, a portion of which was awarded to compensate him for equity he forfeited when he left his prior employer to join us.

*Employee Benefits*. Our employee benefits are a fundamental part of our compensation program, and serve as an important tool in recruiting and retaining executives.

- Pension Benefits. Each of our named executives participates in our Executive Pension Plan, which was a standard part of our benefit package at the time each named executive became eligible. This plan is a nonqualified, defined benefit plan that supplements the pension benefits payable to the named executive under our tax-qualified pension plan, which is the "Retirement Plan," discussed below under "Compensation Tables—Pension Benefits—Fannie Mae Retirement Plan."
- Other Employee Benefits and Plans. In general, named executives are eligible for employee benefits available to our employee population as a whole, including our medical insurance plans, 401(k) plan, and matching gifts program. Named executives also are eligible to participate in programs we make available only to management employees at varying levels, including our elective deferred compensation plan.
- Severance Benefits. Our Chief Executive Officer and our Chief Business Officer are entitled to receive severance benefits under their agreements, dated November 15, 2005 and June 19, 1990, respectively. Our Chief Financial Officer is entitled to receive severance benefits if we terminate his employment prior to the end of 2008.

*Perquisites.* In 2007, we provided our named executives limited perquisites not available to our general employee population, to the extent we believed they were appropriate for retaining and attracting named executives or based on the business needs of the named executives in the performance of their job responsibilities.

We evaluate our existing perquisites from time to time and eliminate any that are deemed no longer appropriate. We recently eliminated several perquisites, effective as of or before January 1, 2008, including reimbursement for financial counseling, use of company transportation for any non-business purposes without reimbursement to us, personal use of company-owned memberships at country clubs, excess liability insurance, and tax "gross-ups" for taxes due on excess liability insurance and life insurance that we provided to officers.

Mr. Mudd's employment agreement provides that we will reimburse Mr. Mudd's legal expenses incurred in connection with any subsequent negotiation, amendment, or discussion of his employment agreement. This perquisite was provided in connection with Mr. Mudd's appointment as President and Chief Executive Officer in June 2005. In addition, Mr. Mudd, in his capacity as a director, participated in our Director's Charitable Award Program in 2007 along with other members of our Board of Directors.

### How did we determine the amount of each element of 2007 cash and stock compensation?

Overview of the Process for Determining 2007 Compensation. The Board (or, in the case of Mr. Mudd, the independent members of the Board) determines compensation for our named executives, based on the recommendations of the Compensation Committee. In making recommendations to the Board for 2007 compensation, the Compensation Committee gave substantial consideration to our performance against our corporate goals in 2007.

In making recommendations to the Board for Mr. Mudd's 2007 compensation, the Compensation Committee also reviewed an assessment of Mr. Mudd's performance by the Chairman of the Board, a self-evaluation and year-end report to the Board by Mr. Mudd, and information provided by Semler Brossy with respect to CEO compensation in our comparator group. In making recommendations to the Board for 2007 compensation for our other named executives, the Compensation Committee also considered Mr. Mudd's assessment of, and his compensation recommendations for, each of these executives, and reviewed the market data provided by Johnson Associates. The Compensation Committee reviewed the current compensation for each named executive as of the most recent year end, including the executive's then current annual compensation, deferred compensation, the value of outstanding long-term incentive stock awards, and retirement benefits.

The following table shows amounts approved by the Board for base salaries that were paid to our named executives in 2007, and cash bonuses and long-term incentive stock awards that were paid or granted to the named executives for 2007 performance. The table also shows the total value of these components relative to

amounts paid in 2006 or for 2006 performance and the percentage change. The table is not intended to replace the summary compensation table, required under applicable SEC rules, which is included below under "Compensation Tables—Summary Compensation Table." The figures shown below represent the way in which the Compensation Committee and the Board viewed and considered our named executives' compensation.

### **Compensation Paid or Granted for 2007**

Named Executive	Base Salary as of 12/31/07 <sup>(1)</sup>	2007 Annual Incentive Plan Bonus	2007 Long-Term Incentive Award <sup>(2)</sup>	Total of 2007 Base Salary, Bonus and Long-Term Incentive Stock Award	Total of 2006 Base Salary, Bonus and Long-Term Incentive Stock Award	% Change from 2006
Daniel Mudd	\$990,000	\$2,227,500	\$9,000,000	\$12,217,500	\$14,449,947	(15.4)%
Stephen Swad <sup>(3)</sup>	650,000	955,500	3,200,000	4,805,500	_	N/A
Robert Blakely <sup>(4)</sup>	663,000	1,113,840	_	1,776,840	5,239,936	N/A
Robert Levin	788,000	1,477,500	6,200,000	8,465,500	9,504,354	(10.9)
Peter Niculescu	585,000	889,199	2,625,000	4,099,199	4,408,982	(7.0)
Michael Williams	676,000	1,189,760	4,784,000	6,649,760	7,527,643	(11.7)

- (1) This amount represents salary as of December 31, 2007, and not amounts actually received by the named executives. For actual salary amounts received during 2007, see the summary compensation table included below under "Compensation Tables—Summary Compensation Table."
- (2) These awards were paid in the form of restricted stock or restricted stock units based on the average of the high and low trading prices of our common stock, which was \$32.16 on January 28, 2008, the date of grant, rounded down to the nearest share or unit. Amounts in this table represent the approximate value of the awards paid to each named executive in January 2008, and differ from the amounts shown in the summary compensation table, which represent the dollar amounts we recognized in 2007 from prior awards for financial statement reporting purposes.
- (3) This table does not include a sign-on bonus of \$500,000 and a grant of 80,000 restricted shares paid in 2007 to Mr. Swad, because the bonus and award were paid solely in connection with his hire and as a result of negotiation. No information for 2006 is provided because Mr. Swad joined us in May 2007.
- (4) Mr. Blakely did not receive a long-term incentive stock award for 2007 because he retired in January 2008 and these awards are designed to provide incentives for future service.

We have analyzed below how each element of our named executives' total direct compensation was determined in 2007 and how their salary was determined for 2008.

### Analysis of Determination of Salaries

Salaries for Messrs. Mudd, Blakely, Levin, Williams, and Niculescu were increased in early 2007 based on their 2006 performance and market data on compensation paid for executives with similar roles and responsibilities. The salary for Mr. Swad was determined by the Board in connection with his hire in May 2007 based on market data, Mr. Swad's compensation from his prior employer, and arms-length negotiation in recruiting him.

Consistent with our compensation philosophy that considers, as a guideline, the market median of total direct compensation paid at companies similar to us, Mr. Niculescu's salary was increased to \$625,950 in 2008. No other named executive received a salary increase for 2008.

Analysis of Determination of Cash Bonuses and Long-Term Incentive Stock Awards for 2007

Review of Our Performance Against the 2007 Corporate Performance Goals. In February 2007, our Board established five categories of corporate performance goals under our Annual Incentive Plan, which focused on successfully operating the business while undertaking significant initiatives to address our financial reporting and compliance issues. The Compensation Committee reviewed our performance against these 2007 corporate performance goals to set the overall target percentage for cash bonuses and 2007 total direct compensation, as described below. We describe each of the five categories and the goals that comprise each category below.

- Business Goals. Our business goals were to optimize our performance through the achievement of targets for new business, book growth, and economic returns and for the transformation of our information technology platforms that support our business.
- *Mission Goals*. Our mission goals were to achieve our housing mission through the attainment of regulatory and minority housing goals. We are subject to housing goals and subgoals set by HUD, and, in addition, we established three self-imposed minority lending goals.
- Financial Goals. Our Board established goals for us to complete and file our Forms 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2005 by August 2007 and for the year ended December 31, 2006 by the end of 2007, remediate all known significant deficiencies and material weaknesses, except disclosure controls, with no new material weaknesses, all while reducing administrative expenses relative to 2006. In addition, we had an overall financial performance goal that had no set quantitative targets.
- Risk Management Goal. Our risk management goal was to detail and finalize risk tolerances for our business lines and ensure compliance with these risk policies and risk limits. The Board's risk management goal charged us with defining, implementing, and complying with corporate risk limits, delivering a risk reporting framework, developing a methodology to evaluate economic capital, and completing validations of our new risk plan through various risk models.
- Compliance and Culture Goals. These goals were to enforce a comprehensive compliance, ethics, and investigations program for legal and regulatory compliance, for constructive and professional engagement with our regulators, and to take tangible steps to accelerate culture change.

In evaluating our performance against the corporate performance goals, the Compensation Committee took into account management's assessment of our performance as well as its own evaluation of our performance against these goals. The Compensation Committee did not have a pre-established formula for assigning a relative weight to any category or any goal within any category. Although we generally met or exceeded expectations for these goals in the aggregate, the Compensation Committee in reviewing our performance against these goals after year-end, determined that one goal, the overall financial performance goal, constituted the material goal in making annual compensation determinations, even though it was only one goal in one category during 2007. The overall financial performance goal had no set quantitative targets in light of the lack of current GAAP-compliant financial statements for recent periods at the time the goals were established and the volatility of various financial metrics. Except for the overall financial performance goal, the Compensation Committee and the Board did not consider any of the five categories of corporate performance goals more important than any other category nor did the Compensation Committee or the Board consider any goal within any single category to be material or give any more weight to such goal than to any other goal in completing their review.

With respect to the overall financial performance goal, in light of both the net loss we experienced in 2007 and the decline in our stock price, the Compensation Committee determined that we failed to meet expectations with regard to achieving this goal. The Board agreed with the determinations made by the Compensation Committee.

Principles Developed by the Compensation Committee. As a result of its review of our 2007 corporate performance, the Compensation Committee developed and applied the principles set forth below in making recommendations for 2007 total direct compensation for our named executives. These principles were the primary factors in determining cash bonuses and long-term incentive stock awards for our named executives in addition to the overall target percentage for such bonuses and the overall guideline for such stock awards described below. Salaries for our named executives were not impacted because they had been paid in 2007.

• Our named executives' and other members of management's total direct compensation for 2007 should reflect an overall decrease compared with 2006 due to our net loss and declining stock price in 2007, while still rewarding our otherwise positive performance and taking into account the importance of retaining our management team. No specific weight or formula was used to tie the decrease in compensation to the extent of our net loss or the decrease in stock price.

In determining individual awards, management with more senior positions should bear a higher level of
responsibility for financial performance and, thus, should have a relatively higher level of decrease in their total
direct compensation, as compared to management with less senior positions. Accordingly, the compensation for
our executive vice presidents and above, including our named executives, generally should reflect a greater
negative impact due to our overall financial performance than the compensation of senior vice presidents and
below.

Overall Target Percentage Guideline for Cash Bonuses. Our compensation philosophy provides that cash bonuses for management, including our named executives, are expected to be in the range of 50% to 150% of previously established targets, although the Board is not restricted to this range. As a result of the review of our 2007 corporate performance and in applying the principles above, the Compensation Committee determined that the overall target percentage for cash bonuses for all executive vice presidents and above, including the named executives, should be 80% of the targets previously established in February 2007. The Compensation Committee also determined that the overall target percentage for senior vice presidents and below should be 90% of the previously established targets, which was consistent with the Compensation Committee's principle that management with more senior positions should bear a higher level of responsibility for financial performance. The Compensation Committee determined that the overall target percentage for executive vice presidents and above appropriately acknowledged the achievement of other corporate performance goals in the aggregate and, consistent with its principles, resulted in this group bearing a greater level of responsibility for the overall financial performance. The Compensation Committee evaluated the executive vice presidents and above as a team in setting the award percentage. However, the Compensation Committee expected that its final individual recommendations for each named executive might differ from the overall target percentage, primarily as a result of its review of the appropriateness of the actual dollar amounts in light of the principle that compensation for our named executives at the most senior level should reflect a greater negative impact.

Overall Guideline for Long-Term Incentive Stock Awards. Long-term incentive stock awards were not subject to corporate performance goals in 2007, and therefore the targets previously established in February 2007 were not adjusted for this performance. The Compensation Committee determined that long-term incentive stock awards should be granted using a guideline of 100% of the previously established targets, in accordance with previous practice. The Compensation Committee decided not to make an exception to this approach in order to:

- continue to align the interests of our named executives with shareholders through equity ownership, which reinforces a shared interest between our named executives and our other shareholders in company performance,
- continue the Board's general practice of having a higher proportion of senior management's compensation be from equity compensation than the compensation of executives at companies similar to us, a practice that has resulted in our named executives experiencing the same decrease in the value of their previously granted equity compensation as that experienced by other shareholders due to the recent decline in our stock price,
- positively recognize that while we are currently experiencing adverse effects from the significant disruption in
  the housing and mortgage markets, many of the actions being taken by management and the new business being
  conducted will provide a solid foundation for future performance and contribute to long-term shareholder
  value, and
- provide retention incentives through the four-year vesting schedule for a management team that has delivered strong performance in very adverse market conditions.

Mr. Mudd did not have a pre-determined 2007 target for his long-term incentive stock award. The Compensation Committee used his actual 2006 long-term incentive stock award as a guideline for determining his 2007 award.

In considering the long-term incentive awards for our named executives, the Compensation Committee considered the appropriate level of decrease in total direct compensation compared with 2006, or, in the case

of Mr. Swad who was not employed by us in 2006, the appropriate overall negative impact on his total direct compensation.

Determination for Mr. Mudd. While taking into account the guideline for long-term incentive stock awards as described above, and consistent with the principle described above that management in the most senior positions should bear the greatest responsibility for our overall financial performance, Mr. Mudd, as our Chief Executive Officer, received 75% of his target cash bonus for 2007 and 90% of the dollar value of his 2006 long-term incentive stock award. As a result, Mr. Mudd's 2007 total direct compensation decreased by 15.4% from his 2006 total direct compensation, the greatest percentage decline among the named executives who were employed by us in 2006 and remain employed in 2008.

Determinations for Each Named Executive other than Mr. Mudd. While taking into account the guideline for long-term incentive stock awards as described above, and consistent with the principle described above that more senior positions should bear a higher level of responsibility for our overall financial performance, Messrs. Levin, Swad, and Williams, as the most senior officers, along with Mr. Mudd, experienced a higher level of decrease in their total direct compensation compared with 2006. As a result, Mr. Levin received 75% of his target cash bonus and 100% of his target long-term incentive stock award, which caused his 2007 total direct compensation to decrease by 10.9% compared with 2006. Mr. Williams received 80% of his target cash bonus and 104% of his target long-term incentive stock award, which caused his 2007 total direct compensation to decrease by 11.7% compared with 2006. As shown above in the table titled "Compensation Paid or Granted for 2007," Mr. Williams and Mr. Levin had the second and third greatest percentage decline, respectively, after Mr. Mudd. While Mr. Swad was not employed by us in 2006, his 2007 total direct compensation was negatively impacted in that he received 70% of the previously established target for his cash bonus. The Compensation Committee determined this was appropriate because his 2007 bonus was not prorated based on his hire date in May 2007.

Consistent with the principles described above, the long-term incentive stock awards with respect to Messrs. Swad and Levin were awarded at 100% of the previously established targets. Messrs. Niculescu and Williams received long-term incentive stock awards in excess of the target because the decline in their total direct compensation would otherwise have been too great, but it was not appropriate to increase their cash bonuses. Retaining our senior management team was an important consideration in determining the long-term incentive awards.

The Compensation Committee determined that Mr. Blakely's cash bonus was appropriate because of his position as a member of the senior management team during 2007. Mr. Blakely did not receive a long-term incentive stock award because of his retirement in January 2008.

### Is there any regulatory oversight of our compensation process for our named executives?

Yes, our regulator, OFHEO, has a role in the compensation of our named executives and certain other officers identified by OFHEO. As long as the Fannie Mae Capital Restoration Plan is in effect, we must obtain OFHEO approval for non-salary compensation actions that relate to this group of executives. We have received the required approval from OFHEO for the 2007 cash bonuses and long-term incentive awards. In addition, OFHEO must approve any termination benefits we wish to offer to this group of executives. We also notify OFHEO of all compensation programs intended primarily for executives.

# What are our stock ownership requirements?

We encourage our directors, officers, and other employees to own our common stock in order to align their interests with the interests of shareholders. We also require our officers above the level of vice president to own our common stock.

Our Chief Executive Officer is required to hold shares of our common stock with a value equal to five times his base salary, plus a portion of the stock he received as part of his long-term incentive stock award for 2006. Our other named executives are required to hold common stock with a value equal to three times base salary. Common stock held to meet the ownership requirements may be in the form of restricted stock, restricted

stock units, or deferred shares. Our Chief Executive Officer and other named executives have five years from the time of appointment to reach the required ownership level.

In addition to our stock ownership requirements, all employees, including our named executives, are prohibited from purchasing and selling derivative securities related to our equity securities, including warrants, puts and calls, or from dealing in any derivative securities other than pursuant to our stock-based benefit plans.

#### What is our compensation recoupment policy?

Under the OFHEO Consent Order dated May 23, 2006, we have agreed that any future employment contracts with named executives will include an escrow of certain payments if OFHEO or any other agency has communicated allegations of misconduct concerning the named executive's official duties at Fannie Mae, and OFHEO has directed us to escrow such funds. In addition, we have agreed to include appropriate provisions in future employment agreements to address terminations for cause and recovery of compensation paid to executives where there are proven allegations of misconduct. All future employment agreements with named executives will contain these provisions.

# What written agreements do we have with our named executives that provide for continued employment?

On November 15, 2005, we entered into an employment agreement with Mr. Mudd, effective June 1, 2005 when he was appointed our President and Chief Executive Officer. We entered into a letter agreement with Mr. Levin, dated June 19, 1990, that provides for severance in connection with a termination without "cause." In connection with our recruitment of Mr. Swad, we agreed to pay him severance benefits if we terminate his employment prior to the end of 2008 for reasons other than "cause." The severance benefits provided under these agreements are described below under "Compensation Tables—Potential Payments Upon Termination or Change-in-Control."

# Report of the Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors

The Compensation Committee has reviewed and discussed the Compensation Discussion and Analysis with management and, based on the review and discussions, the Compensation Committee has recommended to the Board of Directors that the Compensation Discussion and Analysis be included in Fannie Mae's proxy statement for the 2008 annual meeting of shareholders, as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on Schedule 14A and incorporated by reference into the Company's Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2007.

# THE COMPENSATION COMMITTEE

Bridget A. Macaskill, Chair Stephen B. Ashley Louis J. Freeh Brenda J. Gaines Greg C. Smith

### **Compensation Tables**

### **Summary Compensation Table for 2006 and 2007**

The following table shows summary compensation information for 2006 and 2007 for the named executives.

Name and Principal Position	Year	Salary (\$) <sup>(1)</sup>	Bonus (\$) <sup>(2)</sup>	Stock Awards (\$) <sup>(3)</sup>	Option Awards (\$) <sup>(4)</sup>	Non-Equity Incentive Plan Compensation (\$) <sup>(2)</sup>	in Pension Value and Nonqualified Deferred Compensation Earnings (\$)(5)	All Other Compensation (\$) <sup>(6)</sup>	Total (\$)
Daniel Mudd	2007	\$986,923	_	\$6,840,214		\$2,227,500	\$863,749	\$153,531	\$11,648,409
President and Chief Executive Officer	2006	950,000	_	4,799,057	962,112	3,500,000	932,958	136,072	11,280,199
Stephen Swad Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer	2007	420,000	\$500,000	920,741	_	955,500	190,915	37,747	3,024,903
Robert Blakely <sup>(7)</sup>	2007	636,500	_	3,299,361	_	1,113,840	190,479	163,895	5,404,075
Former Executive Vice President and Former Chief Financial Officer	2006	587,500	926,250	3,898,589	_	364,325	209,087	140,480	6,126,231
Robert Levin	2007	785,077	_	3,884,783	546,654	1,477,500	203,174	70,545	6,967,733
Executive Vice President and Chief Business Officer	2006	750,000	_	2,477,097	883,442	2,087,250	307,078	70,710	6,575,577
Peter Niculescu	2007	581,537	_	1,873,241	323,569	889,199	216,058	39,754	3,923,358
Executive Vice President— Capital Markets	2006	538,188	_	1,388,328	533,816	1,029,060	232,562	39,906	3,761,860
Michael Williams	2007	697,164	_	2,916,660	404,434	1,189,760	359,279	55,418	5,622,715
Executive Vice President and Chief Operating Officer	2006	650,000	_	1,808,182	701,446	1,630,200	371,753	69,482	5,231,063

<sup>(1) &</sup>quot;Salary" for Mr. Blakely in 2006 and 2007 includes \$275,000 and \$325,000, respectively, which he elected to defer to later years.

The SFAS 123R grant date fair value of restricted stock and restricted stock units is calculated as the average of the high and low trading price of our common stock on the date of grant. Because performance shares do not participate in dividends during the three-year performance cycle and include a cap on the market value to be paid equal to three times the grant date market value, the SFAS 123R grant date fair value of performance shares is calculated as the market value on date of grant, less the present value of expected dividends over the three-year performance period discounted at the risk-free rate, less the value of the three-times cap based on a Black-Scholes option pricing model.

<sup>(2)</sup> Except as otherwise noted, amounts reported in the "Bonus" column do not include amounts earned under our Annual Incentive Plan, which are shown in the "Non-Equity Incentive Plan Compensation" column. Except for deferred amounts noted below, amounts earned under our Annual Incentive Plan, as shown in the "Non-Equity Incentive Plan Compensation" column, were paid to our named executives in the fiscal year following the fiscal year in which they were earned by our named executives. "Bonus" for Mr. Swad consists of the sign-on bonus he received in connection with his joining us in 2007. For 2007, Mr. Swad was awarded a bonus of \$955,500 under our Annual Incentive Plan, \$100,000 of which he deferred to later years. For 2006, Mr. Blakely was awarded a total bonus of \$1,290,575 under our Annual Incentive Plan, which he deferred to later years. Of this amount, we guaranteed him in connection with his joining us a minimum bonus of \$926,250 for 2006, which we have reported in the "Bonus" column. For 2007, Mr. Blakely was awarded a total bonus of \$1,113,840 under our Annual Incentive Plan, which he deferred to later years.

<sup>(3)</sup> These amounts do not represent the value of stock awards received by the named executives for 2007 performance, which values are shown as of the date of the award above under "Compensation Discussion and Analysis—How did we determine the amount of each elements of 2007 cash and stock compensation?" These amounts represent the dollar amounts we recognized for financial statement reporting purposes with respect to each of 2006 and 2007 for the fair value of restricted stock, restricted stock units, and performance shares granted during 2006 and 2007, as applicable, and in prior years in accordance with SFAS 123R. As required by SEC rules, the amounts shown exclude the impact of estimated forfeitures related to service-based vesting conditions. As a result of the Board's decision to pay out awards under our Performance Share Program at 40% for the 2003-2005 performance cycle and at 47.5% for the 2004-2006 performance cycle, we reversed expenses for 2006 that we previously recorded in our financial statements based on our estimate that awards would be paid out at 50%. To the extent these expenses were recorded prior to 2006, the amounts above do not reflect the reversal of these expenses.

- (4) No named executive has received a stock option award since January 2004. These amounts represent the dollar amounts we recognized for financial statement reporting purposes with respect to each year for the fair value of stock option awards granted in January 2004 and in prior years in accordance with SFAS 123R. As required by SEC rules, the amounts shown exclude the impact of estimated forfeitures related to service-based vesting conditions. For the assumptions used in calculating the value of these awards, see "Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements—Note 1, Summary of Significant Accounting Policies—Stock-Based Compensation," of our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2007.
- (5) The reported amounts represent change in pension value. None of our named executives received above-market or preferential earnings on nonqualified deferred compensation.
- The table below shows more information about the components of the "All Other Compensation" column for 2007. The Charitable Award Program amounts reflect a matching contribution program under which an employee who contributes at certain levels to the Fannie Mae Political Action Committee may direct that an equal amount, up to \$5,000, be donated by us to charities chosen by the employee in the employee's name. Mr. Mudd's "Charitable Award Program" amount consists of \$5,000 under this matching program plus \$18,251 for our incremental cost relating to his participation in our charitable award program for directors, which is described below under "Director Compensation Information." We calculated our incremental cost of each director's participation in our charitable award program for directors based on (1) the present value of our expected future payment of the benefit that became vested during 2007, and (2) the time value during 2007 of amounts vested for that director in prior years. We estimated the present values of our expected future payment based on the age and gender of our directors, the RP 2000 white collar mortality table projected to 2010, and a discount rate of approximately 5.5%. Mr. Mudd's "All Other Compensation" for 2007 includes our incremental cost of providing tax planning and financial counseling services, executive health program, and dining services. As of July 1, 2007, we no longer provide for payment of tax planning and financial counseling services. Our executives also have access to company drivers and vehicles, and to tickets for sporting events and concerts for personal use, for which they reimburse us our cost. In accordance with SEC rules, amounts shown under "All Other Compensation" do not include perquisites or personal benefits for a named executive that, in the aggregate, amount to less than \$10,000. Amounts shown also do not include gifts made by the Fannie Mae Foundation under its matching gifts program, under which gifts made by our employees and directors to 501(c)(3) charities are matched, up to an aggregate total of \$10,000 in any calendar year. No amounts are included for this program because, during 2007, the matching gifts were made by the Fannie Mae Foundation, not Fannie

#### Components of "All Other Compensation" for 2007

Named Executive	401(k) Plan Matching Contributions	Universal Life Insurance Coverage Premiums	Universal Life Insurance Tax Gross-up	Excess Liability Insurance Coverage Premiums	Excess Liability Insurance Tax Gross-up	Charitable Award Programs	Included Perquisites
Daniel Mudd	\$6,750	\$58,650	\$47,890	\$975	\$795	\$23,251	\$15,220
Stephen Swad	_	21,482	11,265	_	_	5,000	_
Robert Blakely	_	86,709	70,801	975	795	4,615	_
Robert Levin	6,750	31,715	25,326	975	779	5,000	_
Peter Niculescu	6,750	18,101	13,216	975	712	_	<u> </u>
Michael Williams	6,750	23,304	18,610	975	779	5,000	_

(7) Mr. Blakely retired in January 2008.

#### Grants of Plan-Based Awards in 2007

The following table shows grants of awards made under our Annual Incentive Plan and the 2003 Plan to the named executives during 2007.

Named Executive	Grant Date for Equity Awards <sup>(1)</sup>	Award Approval Date <sup>(1)</sup>	Estimated Possible Payouts Under Non-Equity Incentive Plan Awards <sup>(2)</sup> Target (\$)	All Other Stock Awards: Number of Shares of Stock or Units (#) <sup>(3)</sup>	Grant Date Fair Value of Stock and Option Awards (\$) <sup>(4)</sup>
Daniel Mudd	1/25/2007	1/25/2007	\$2,970,000	176,506	\$9,999,947
Stephen Swad	5/2/2007	4/13/2007	1,365,000	80,000	4,730,000
Robert Blakely	1/25/2007	1/25/2007	1,392,300	58,236	3,299,361
Robert Levin	1/25/2007	1/25/2007	1,970,000	117,679	6,667,104
Peter Niculescu	1/25/2007	1/25/2007	1,111,499	50,127	2,839,945
Michael Williams	1/25/2007	1/25/2007	1,487,200	92,621	5,247,443

<sup>(1)</sup> The "Grant Date" column shows the grant date for equity awards determined for financial statement reporting purposes pursuant to SFAS 123R and reflects the date our Board approved the equity award or, in the case of Mr. Swad, his starting date with us.

- (2) The amounts shown are the target amounts established by our Board for 2007 performance under our Annual Incentive Plan. The amount paid to a named executive is based on our 2007 performance against pre-established corporate performance goals. Our Board and Compensation Committee also retain discretion to pay bonuses in amounts below or above the amount derived from measuring performance against corporate performance goals. Although it was expected that performance against corporate performance goals in 2007 would be in the range of 50% to 150% of target, the determination of corporate performance, and the potential size of awards, was not restricted to this range.
  - For 2007, the Board granted a cash bonus to Mr. Mudd of 75% of his target, to Mr. Swad of 70% of his target, to Mr. Blakely of 80% of his target, to Mr. Levin of 75% of his target, to Mr. Niculescu of 80% of his target and to Mr. Williams of 80% of his target. The amounts actually awarded for 2007 are reported as "Non-Equity Incentive Plan Compensation" in the Summary Compensation Table.
- (3) Consists of restricted stock or restricted stock units awarded under the 2003 Plan. The amounts shown for Messrs. Mudd, Levin, Niculescu, and Williams represent restricted stock that vests in four equal annual installments beginning in January 2008. One-half of the amount shown for Mr. Swad represents restricted stock that vests in four equal annual installments beginning in May 2008, and the remaining amount vests in three equal annual installments beginning in May 2008. As the holder of restricted stock the named executive has the rights and privileges of a shareholder as to the restricted stock, other than the ability to sell or otherwise transfer it, including the right to receive any dividends declared with respect to the stock and the right to provide instructions on how to vote.
  - For Mr. Blakely, the amounts shown are restricted stock units, which represent the right to receive a share of unrestricted common stock for each unit upon vesting. The grant of 58,236 units was scheduled to vest in four equal annual installments beginning in January 2008. Because he was already 65, Mr. Blakely's restricted stock units vested fully upon his retirement in January 2008. As the holder of restricted stock units, Mr. Blakely received dividend equivalents on the units, but did not have the right to vote, sell or otherwise transfer the stock represented by the units until the restrictions lapsed and shares were issued.
- (4) The SFAS 123R grant date fair value of restricted stock and restricted stock unit awards is calculated as the average of the high and low trading price of our common stock on the date of grant.

# Outstanding Equity Awards at 2007 Fiscal Year-End

The following table shows outstanding stock option awards, unvested restricted stock, restricted stock unit awards, and performance share program awards held by the named executives as of December 31, 2007. The market value of stock awards shown in the table below is based on a per share price of \$39.98, which was the closing market price of our common stock on December 31, 2007.

							Stock A	
				0.41	1 (2)			Market
Name	Award Type <sup>(1)</sup>	Grant Date or Performance Period	Number of Securities Underlying Unexercised Options (#) Exercisable	Option Award Number of Securities Underlying Unexercised Options (#) Unexercisable	Option Exercise Price (\$)	Option Expiration Date	Number of Shares or Units of Stock That Have Not Vested (#)	Value of Shares or Units of Stock That Have Not Vested (\$)
Daniel Mudd	O	2/23/2000	114,855		\$52.78	2/23/2010		
	O	2/23/2000	116,710(3)		52.78	1/18/2010		
	O	11/21/2000	89,730		77.10	11/21/2010		
	O	11/20/2001	87,194		80.95	11/20/2011		
	O	1/21/2003	82,918		69.43	1/21/2013		
	O	1/23/2004	79,311	26,438	78.32	1/23/2014		
	RSU	3/10/2005						\$1,275,482
	RS	11/15/2005					$10,589^{(5)}$	423,348
	RS	3/22/2006						4,395,041
	RS	1/25/2007					176,506	7,056,710
	PSP	1/1/2004 to 12/31/2006					7,980 <sup>(7)</sup>	319,040
Stephen Swad	RS	5/2/2007					40,000(4)	1.599,200
	RS	5/2/2007					40,000	1,599,200
Robert Blakely	RSU	1/30/2006					6,666(4)	266,507
Robert Blakely	RSU	3/22/2006					46,209(6)	1,847,436
	RSU	1/25/2007					58,236	2,328,275
							36,230	2,320,273
Robert Levin	O	11/17/1998	43,650		69.31	11/17/2008		
	0	11/16/1999	47,300		71.50	11/16/2009		
	0	1/18/2000	56,572(3)		62.50	1/18/2010		
	0	11/21/2000	43,430		77.10	11/21/2010		
	0	11/20/2001	44,735		80.95	11/20/2011		
	0	1/21/2003	72,445		69.43	1/21/2013		
	0	1/23/2004	75,459	25,154	78.32	1/23/2014		
	RS	1/23/2004					730	29,185
	RS	3/10/2005					18,050(5)	721,639
	RS	3/22/2006					58,693 <sup>(6)</sup>	2,346,546
	RS	1/25/2007					117,679	4,704,806
	PSP	1/1/2004 to 12/31/2006					7,592 <sup>(7)</sup>	303,528
Peter Niculescu	O	3/8/1999	16,000		70.72	3/6/2009		
	О	11/16/1999	14,340		71.50	11/16/2009		
	0	1/18/2000	24,804(3)		62.50	1/18/2010		
	O	11/21/2000	12,120		77.10	11/21/2010		
	O	11/20/2001	13,150		80.95	11/20/2011		
	O	1/21/2003	45,217		69.43	1/21/2013		
	O	1/21/2003	7,288(3)		69.43	1/18/2010		
	O	1/23/2004	44,568	14,857	78.32	1/23/2014		
	RS	3/10/2005					11,516 <sup>(4)</sup>	460,410
	RS	3/22/2006					24,711(6)	987,946
	RS	1/25/2007					50,127	2,004,077
	PSP	1/1/2004 to						
		12/31/2006					4,484(7)	179,270

						_	Stock Av	vards(2)
		Grant Date or	Number of Securities Underlying Unexercised	Option Awar Number of Securities Underlying Unexercised	Option Exercise	Option	Number of Shares or Units of Stock That Have Not	Market Value of Shares or Units of Stock That Have Not
Name	Award Type <sup>(1)</sup>	Performance Period	Options (#) Exercisable	Options (#) Unexercisable	Price (\$)	Expiration Date	Vested (#)	Vested (\$)
Michael Williams	0	11/17/1998	11,390		\$69.31	11/17/2008		
.,	0	11/16/1999	12,290		71.50	11/16/2009		
	0	1/18/2000	20,027(3)		62.50	1/18/2010		
	O	11/21/2000	35,610		77.10	11/21/2010		
	О	1/16/2001	13,087(3)		78.56	1/18/2010		
	O	11/20/2001	44,735		80.95	11/20/2011		
	О	1/21/2003	63,836		69.43	1/21/2013		
	O	1/23/2004	55,410	18,470	78.32	1/23/2014		
	RS	3/10/2005					12,671(4)	\$ 506,587
	RS	3/22/2006					46,209(6)	1,847,436
	RS	1/25/2007					92,621	3,702,988
	PSP	1/1/2004 to					(7)	222 000
		12/31/2006					$5,575^{(7)}$	222,889

- (1) O indicates stock options; RS indicates restricted stock; RSU indicates restricted stock units; and PSP indicates performance share program awards.
- (2) Except as otherwise indicated, all awards of options, restricted stock, and restricted stock units listed in this table vest in four equal annual installments beginning on the first anniversary of the date of grant. Amounts reported in this table for restricted stock and restricted stock units represent only the unvested portion of awards. Amounts reported in this table for options represent only the unexercised portions of awards.
- (3) The stock options vested 100% on January 23, 2004.
- (4) The initial award amount vests in three equal annual installments beginning on the first anniversary of the date of grant.
- (5) The initial award amount vests in three equal annual installments beginning on March 10, 2006.
- (6) The initial award amount vests in four equal annual installments beginning on January 24, 2007. In connection with the stock awards with a grant date of March 22, 2006, each of our named executives other than Mr. Mudd also received a cash award payable in four equal annual installments beginning on January 24, 2007. As of December 31, 2007, the unpaid portions of our named executives' cash awards were as follows: Mr. Blakely and Mr. Williams, \$1,242,203; Mr. Levin, \$1,577,813; and Mr. Niculescu, \$664,290.
- (7) In September 2007, our Board made a final determination to pay awards under our performance share program, or PSP, for performance periods ending prior to 2007. The shares shown were paid out in January 2008.

### Option Exercises and Stock Vested in 2007

The following table shows information regarding stock option exercises by and vesting of restricted stock and restricted stock unit awards held by the named executives during 2007.

	Option	n Awards	Stock Awards			
Name	Number of Shares Acquired on Exercise (#)	Value Realized on Exercise (\$) <sup>(1)</sup>	Number of Shares Acquired on Vesting (#)	Value Realized on Vesting (\$) <sup>(2)</sup>		
Daniel Mudd	_	\$ —	36,643 10,589 31,903 19,418 <sup>(3)</sup>	\$2,070,696 583,322 1,757,457 1,012,260		
Stephen Swad		_	´ —	, , <u>,                                 </u>		
Robert Blakely	_	_	15,402 3,334	870,367 185,687		
Robert Levin	46,110	519,715	730 19,564 18,049 17,586 <sup>(3)</sup>	41,420 1,105,562 994,274 916,758		
Peter Niculescu	_	_	8,237 11,516 10,722 <sup>(3)</sup>	465,473 634,388 558,938		
Michael Williams	11,920	134,353	15,402 12,671 14,381 <sup>(3)</sup>	870,367 698,014 749,682		

<sup>(1)</sup> The value realized on exercise has been determined by multiplying the number of shares exercised by the difference between the fair market value of our common stock at the time of exercise and the per share exercise price of the options.

#### **Pension Benefits**

The table below sets forth information on the pension benefits for the named executives for 2007 under each of the pension plans described below. We have made certain changes to our pension benefits, effective for employees hired after December 31, 2007, which are described below.

Retirement Plan. The Federal National Mortgage Association Retirement Plan for Employees Not Covered Under Civil Service Retirement Law, which we refer to as the Retirement Plan, provides benefits for those eligible employees, including the named executives, who are not covered by the federal Civil Service retirement law. Normal retirement benefits are computed on a single life basis using a formula based on final average annual earnings and years of credited service. Participants are fully vested when they complete five years of credited service. Since 1989, provisions of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, have limited the amount of annual compensation that may be used for calculating pension benefits and the annual benefit that may be paid. For 2007, the statutory compensation and benefit caps were \$225,000 and \$180,000, respectively. Before 1989, some employees accrued benefits based on higher income levels. For employees who retire before age 65, benefits are reduced by stated percentages for each year that they are younger than 65.

*Executive Pension Plan.* We adopted the Executive Pension Plan to supplement the benefits payable to key officers under the Retirement Plan. The Compensation Committee approves the participants in the Executive

<sup>(2)</sup> The value realized on vesting has been determined by multiplying the number of shares of stock or units by the fair market value of our common stock on the vesting date.

<sup>(3)</sup> The reported amount is for payment under our performance share program for performance periods ending prior to 2007. These shares were paid in November 2007.

Pension Plan, who include the named executives. The Board of Directors approves each participant's pension goal, which is part of the formula that determines pension benefits. Payments under the Executive Pension Plan are reduced by any amounts payable under the Retirement Plan.

The maximum annual pension benefit (when combined with the Retirement Plan benefit) that would be payable to Mr. Mudd is 50% and to our other named executives is 40% of the named executive's highest average covered compensation earned during any 36 consecutive months within the last 120 months of employment. Covered compensation generally is a participant's average annual base salary, including deferred compensation, plus the participant's other taxable compensation (excluding income or gain in connection with the exercise of stock options) earned for the relevant year, in an amount up to 150% of base salary for our Executive Vice Presidents and 200% of base salary for Mr. Mudd. As a result, Mr. Mudd's maximum annual benefit under the Executive Pension Plan is 100% of his salary. The other named executives could receive a maximum annual benefit equal to 60% of salary. Effective for benefits earned on and after March 1, 2007, the only taxable compensation other than base salary considered for the purpose of calculating covered compensation is a participant's annual incentive plan cash bonus.

Participants who retire before age 60 generally receive a reduced benefit. The benefit is reduced by 2% for each year between the year in which benefit payments begin and the year in which the participant turns 60. However, Mr. Mudd's employment agreement provides that his benefit will be reduced by 3% for each year before he turns 60. A participant is not entitled to receive a pension benefit under the Executive Pension Plan until the participant has completed five years of service as a plan participant, at which point the pension benefit becomes 50% vested and continues vesting at the rate of 10% per year during the next five years. The benefit payment typically is a monthly amount equal to 1/12th of the participant's annual retirement benefit payable during the lives of the participant and the participant's surviving spouse. The benefit payment to the surviving spouse is subject to an actuarial adjustment for participants who joined the Executive Pension Plan on or after March 1, 2007. If a participant dies before receiving benefits under the Executive Pension Plan, generally his or her surviving spouse will be entitled to a death benefit that begins when the spouse reaches age 55, based on the participant's pension benefit at the date of death.

Supplemental Pension Plans. We adopted the Supplemental Pension Plan to provide supplemental retirement benefits to employees whose salary exceeds the statutory compensation cap applicable to the Retirement Plan or whose benefit under the Retirement Plan is limited by the statutory benefit cap applicable to the Retirement Plan. Separately, we adopted the 2003 Supplemental Pension Plan to provide additional benefits to our officers based on their annual cash bonuses, which are not taken into account under the Supplemental Pension Plan. Benefits under the supplemental pension plans vest at the same time as benefits under the Retirement Plan. For purposes of determining benefits under the 2003 Supplemental Pension Plan, the amount of an officer's annual cash bonus taken into account is limited to 50% of the officer's base salary. Benefits under the supplemental pension plans typically commence at the same time as benefits under the Retirement Plan. Officers who are eligible for the Executive Pension Plan will receive the greater of their Executive Pension Plan or combined Supplemental Pension Plan and 2003 Supplemental Pension Plan benefits.

The table below shows information about years of credited service and the present value of accumulated benefits for each named executive under each of our pension plans as of December 31, 2007. The Executive Pension Plan supplements the benefits payable to named executives under the Retirement Plan; amounts are shown for both of these plans in the table. Amounts are not shown for our supplemental pension plans, except for Mr. Blakely, because no benefits would be paid under these plans if a named executive's benefit under the Executive Pension Plan, together with the named executive's benefit under the Retirement Plan, exceeded his or her combined benefits under the supplemental plans and the Retirement Plan. At the time that most of our executives retire, the Executive Pension Plan will pay a greater benefit. As a result, we included only the values that would be payable under the Retirement Plan and the Executive Pension Plan. Because Mr. Blakely retired before 2011, when he would first have become entitled to receive benefits under the Executive Pension

Plan, his benefits are greater under our supplemental plans and, as a result, we have included values for Mr. Blakely under those plans rather than under our Executive Pension Plan.

### **Pension Benefits for 2007**

Name of Executive	Plan Name	Number of Years Credited Service (#) <sup>(1)</sup>	Present Value of Accumulated Benefit (\$) <sup>(2)</sup>
Daniel Mudd <sup>(3)</sup>	Retirement Plan Supplemental Pension Plan 2003 Supplemental Pension Plan	8	\$ 115,627
	Executive Pension Plan	8	4,915,591
Stephen Swad	Retirement Plan Supplemental Pension Plan 2003 Supplemental Pension Plan	1	9,651
	Executive Pension Plan	1	181,264
Robert Blakely <sup>(4)</sup>	Retirement Plan	2	86,196
	Supplemental Pension Plan	2	178,422
	2003 Supplemental Pension Plan Executive Pension Plan	2	134,948
Robert Levin	Retirement Plan Supplemental Pension Plan 2003 Supplemental Pension Plan	27	480,763
	Executive Pension Plan	18	2.943.095
Peter Niculescu	Retirement Plan Supplemental Pension Plan 2003 Supplemental Pension Plan	9	121,883
	Executive Pension Plan	5	833,993
Michael Williams	Retirement Plan Supplemental Pension Plan 2003 Supplemental Pension Plan	17	261,093
	Executive Pension Plan	7	1,494,705

<sup>(1)</sup> Mr. Levin, Mr. Niculescu, and Mr. Williams each have fewer years of credited service under the Executive Pension Plan than under the Retirement Plan because they worked at Fannie Mae prior to becoming participants in the Executive Pension Plan.

In 2007, we made revisions to our retirement program. The primary changes were to freeze, as of June 30, 2008, participation in our defined benefit pension plans, including our Retirement Plan, Executive Pension Plan, Supplemental Pension Plan of 2003 for employees who do not satisfy a Rule of 45 (that is, the sum of their age plus years of service is 45 or greater). Employees who are newly hired after December 31, 2007 and employees who do not satisfy the Rule of 45 will participate in an enhanced version of our Retirement Savings Plan (our 401(k) plan) rather than our defined benefit pension plans. Employees who do satisfy the Rule of 45 will continue to participate in our defined benefit pension plans. All of our named executives satisfy the Rule of 45 and thus are not affected by the changes to our plans.

<sup>(2)</sup> The present value has been calculated for the Executive Pension Plan assuming the named executives will remain in service until age 60, the normal retirement age under the Executive Pension Plan, and assuming the named executives will remain in service until age 65, the normal retirement age under the Retirement Plan. The values also assume that benefits under the Executive Pension Plan will be paid in the form of a monthly annuity for the life of the named executive and the named executive's surviving spouse and benefits under the Retirement Plan will be paid in the form of a single life monthly annuity for the life of the named executive. The post-retirement mortality assumption is based on the RP 2000 white collar mortality table projected to 2010. For additional information regarding the calculation of present value and the assumptions underlying these amounts, see "Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements—Note 14, Employee Retirement Benefits," of our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2007.

<sup>(3)</sup> Mr. Mudd's employment agreement provides that if Mr. Mudd's benefit payments are in the form of a joint and 100% survivor annuity, the payments will be actuarially reduced to reflect the joint life expectancy of Mr. Mudd and his spouse.

<sup>(4)</sup> Mr. Blakely retired in January 2008 and is eligible to receive benefits under our supplemental pension plans and the Retirement Plan.

#### **Nonqualified Deferred Compensation**

The table below provides information on the nonqualified deferred compensation of the named executives in 2007, including compensation deferred under our Elective Deferred Compensation Plan II and our Performance Share Program.

Elective Deferred Compensation Plans. Our Elective Deferred Compensation Plan II allows eligible employees, including our named executives, to defer up to 50% of their salary and up to 100% of their bonus to future years, as determined by the named executive. Deferred amounts are deemed to be invested in mutual funds or in an investment option with earnings benchmarked to our long-term borrowing rate, as designated by the participants. The deferred compensation plan is an unfunded plan. The Elective Deferred Compensation Plan II applies to compensation that is deferred after December 31, 2004.

The prior deferred compensation plan, the Elective Deferred Compensation Plan I, continues to operate for compensation deferred under that plan on or prior to December 31, 2004. Similar to the Elective Deferred Compensation Plan II, the Elective Deferred Compensation Plan I provides that deferred amounts are deemed to be invested in mutual funds or in an investment option with earnings benchmarked to our long-term borrowing rate, as designated by the participants, and is an unfunded plan.

Deferred Payments under Performance Share Program (PSP). We adopted guidelines under our Stock Compensation Plan of 1993 that permit participants in the PSP to defer payment of their awards until a later date or a specified event such as retirement. Under these guidelines, participants can choose to have their deferred PSP payments converted into a hypothetical investment portfolio. This program has been frozen and no new deferrals can be made.

#### Nonqualified Deferred Compensation for 2007

Name of Executive	Executive Contributions in Last Fiscal Year (\$)	Registrant Contributions in Last Fiscal Year (\$)	Aggregate Earnings in Last Fiscal Year (\$) <sup>(1)</sup>	Aggregate Withdrawals/ Distributions (\$)	Aggregate Balance at Last Fiscal Year-End (\$)
Daniel Mudd	_	_	_	_	_
Stephen Swad	_	_	_	_	_
Robert Blakely					
Elective Deferred					
Compensation Plan II	\$1,596,862(2)	_	\$108,695	_	\$2,005,429(3)
Robert Levin					
Deferred PSP Payments	_	_	260,320	_	3,660,162
Peter Niculescu	_	_	_	_	_
Michael Williams					
Elective Deferred					
Compensation Plan I	_	_	27,077	_	534,042
2001 Special Stock Award <sup>(4)</sup>	_	_	(22,826)	_	53,153

<sup>(1)</sup> None of the earnings reported in this column are reported as compensation in the "Summary Compensation Table" because the earnings are neither above-market nor preferential.

<sup>(2)</sup> This amount includes Mr. Blakely's bonus of \$1,290,575 reported under "Bonus" and "Non-Equity Incentive Plan Compensation" in the "Summary Compensation Table" for 2006, net of amounts withheld for payment of taxes, and \$325,000 reported as "Salary" in the "Summary Compensation Table" for 2007, which amounts were contributed to the Elective Deferred Compensation Plan II in 2007. This amount does not include Mr. Blakely's bonus of \$1,113,840 reported under "Non-Equity Incentive Plan Compensation" in the "Summary Compensation Table" for 2007, which was contributed to the Elective Deferred Compensation Plan II in 2008. This amount also does not include \$100,000 of Mr. Swad's bonus reported under "Non-Equity Incentive Plan Compensation" in the "Summary Compensation Table" for 2007, which was contributed to the Elective Deferred Compensation Plan II in 2008.

<sup>(3)</sup> Includes \$275,000 in salary reported in the "Summary Compensation Table" for 2006.

<sup>(4)</sup> The Board previously approved a special stock award to officers for 2001 performance. On January 15, 2002, Mr. Williams deferred until retirement 1,142 shares he received in connection with this award. Aggregate earnings on these shares reflect dividends and changes in stock price. Mr. Williams' number of shares has grown through the reinvestment of dividends to 1,329 shares as of December 31, 2007.

# Potential Payments Upon Termination or Change-in-Control

The information below describes and quantifies certain compensation and benefits that would become payable under our existing employment agreements, plans, and arrangements if our named executives' employment had terminated on December 31, 2007, taking into account each named executive's compensation and service levels as of that date and based on a per share price of \$39.98, which was the closing price of our common stock on December 31, 2007. We are not obligated to provide any additional compensation in connection with a change-in-control. The information below does not generally reflect compensation and benefits available to all salaried employees upon termination of employment with us under similar circumstances.

*Employment Agreement with Daniel Mudd.* Mr. Mudd's employment agreement provides for certain benefits upon the termination of his employment with us depending on the reason for his termination. These benefits are described in the following table.

Type of Termination	Payments
Without "Cause," by Mr. Mudd For "Good Reason,"	— Accrued, but unpaid base salary.
Serious Illness or Disability, or "Failure to Extend" the	
"Cause" means Mr. Mudd has: (a) materially harmed the company by, in connection with his service under his employment agreement, engaging in dishonest or fraudulent actions or willful misconduct, or performing his duties in a grossly negligent manner, or (b) been convicted of, or pleaded nolo contendere with respect to, a felony.  "Good Reason" means (a) a material reduction by the company of Mr. Mudd's authority or a material change in Mr. Mudd's functions, duties or responsibilities that in any material way would cause Mr. Mudd's position to become less important, (b) a reduction in Mr. Mudd's base salary, (c) a requirement that Mr. Mudd report to anyone other than the Chairman of the Board of Directors, (d) a requirement by Fannie Mae that Mr. Mudd relocate his office outside of the Washington, DC area, or (e) a breach by the company of any material obligation under the employment agreement.  "Failure to Extend" means notification by the company that it does not desire to extend the term of the employment agreement (which expires December 31, 2009) or that it desires to do so only on terms in the aggregate that are materially less favorable	<ul> <li>Base salary for two years (subject to offset for other employment or employer-provided disability payments in the event of termination due to serious illness or disability).</li> <li>Prorated annual bonus for the year of termination and all amounts payable (but unpaid) under the annual bonus plan with respect to any year ended on or prior to the termination date.</li> <li>Prorated PSP payment for any cycle in which at least 18 months have elapsed as of the date of termination and payment of all amounts payable (but unpaid) for completed cycles.</li> <li>Vesting of all shares of restricted stock, to the extent not already vested.</li> <li>Vesting of all options; options granted after the date of the employment agreement remain exercisable through the earlier of the remainder of the original exercise period and the third anniversary of the date</li> </ul>
Death or by Reason of Mr. Mudd's Acceptance of an Appointment to a Senior Position in the U.S. Federal Government	<ul> <li>Upon a termination by Fannie Mae without Cause or by Mr. Mudd for Good Reason, continued medical and dental coverage for Mr. Mudd and his spouse and dependents (but in the case of Mr. Mudd's dependents only for so long as they remain dependents or until age 21 if later), without premium payments by Mr. Mudd, for two years or if earlier, the date Mr. Mudd obtains comparable coverage through another employer.</li> <li>Same payments as above except (a) no salary severance, (b) no continued medical and dental coverage, and (c) in the case of termination due to acceptance of a governmental position, no accelerated vesting of options.</li> </ul>

Type of Termination	Payments
"Retirement" or "Early Retirement"	— Accrued, but unpaid base salary.
"Retirement" means termination at or after age 65, under conditions entitling an eligible employee to an immediate annuity under the Fannie Mae Retirement Plan.  "Early Retirement" means termination at or after age 60, but before age 65, with five or more years of service, or at an earlier age only if permitted by the Compensation Committee in its sole discretion	<ul> <li>— Prorated PSP payment for any cycle in which at least 18 months have elapsed as of the date of termination and payment of all amounts payable (but unpaid) for completed cycles.</li> <li>— In the case of Retirement, but not Early Retirement, vesting of all shares of restricted stock, to the extent not already vested. In the event of Early Retirement, we may in our discretion accelerate the vesting of shares of restricted stock.</li> <li>— Vesting of all options; options granted after the date of the employment agreement will remain exercisable through the earlier of the remainder of the original exercise period and the third anniversary of the date of the termination.</li> </ul>
For Cause or Voluntary Termination (other than for Good	— Accrued, but unpaid base salary.
Reason or to Accept a Senior Position in the U.S. Federal Government)	— If termination is for Cause, Mr. Mudd would not be entitled to any amounts payable (but unpaid) under any bonus program or under any PSP award with respect to a performance cycle if the reason for such termination for Cause is substantially related to the earning of such bonus or to the performance over the performance cycle upon which the payment was based.

Mr. Mudd's employment agreement also obligates him not to compete with us in the U.S., solicit any officer or employee of ours or our affiliates to terminate his or her relationship with us or to engage in prohibited competition, or to assist others to engage in activities in which Mr. Mudd would be prohibited from engaging, in each case for two years following termination. Mr. Mudd may request a waiver from these non-competition obligations, which the Board may grant if it determines in good faith that an activity proposed by Mr. Mudd would not prejudice our interests. Mr. Mudd's employment agreement provides us with the right to seek and obtain injunctive relief from a court of competent jurisdiction to restrain Mr. Mudd from any actual or threatened breach of these obligations. Disputes arising under the employment agreement are to be resolved through arbitration, and we bear Mr. Mudd's legal expenses unless he does not prevail. We also agreed to reimburse Mr. Mudd's legal expenses incurred in connection with any subsequent negotiation, amendment, or discussion of his employment agreement and to reimburse him for a complete physical examination annually.

The following table quantifies the compensation that would have become payable to Mr. Mudd if his employment had terminated on December 31, 2007, given his compensation as of that date and based on the closing price of our common stock on that date, which was \$39.98 per share. In the case of retirement, the table shows benefits that would have become payable if Mr. Mudd had reached age 60 with 5 years of service or age 65 with no service requirement; Mr. Mudd is currently 49.

#### Potential Payments to Mr. Mudd as of December 31, 2007

Payment Type	Without Cause or for Good Reason	Upon Non-Extension of the Agreement, Serious Illness or Disability	Acceptance of Senior Position in U.S. Federal Government	Death	Retirement
Cash Severance	\$ 1,980,000	\$ 1,980,000	N/A	N/A	N/A
Cash Bonus <sup>(1)</sup>	2,227,500	2,227,500	\$ 2,227,500	\$ 2,227,500	\$ 2,227,500
Accelerated Stock Awards <sup>(2)</sup>	13,150,581	13,150,581	13,150,581	13,150,581	13,150,581
Performance Share Program					
Award <sup>(3)</sup>	319,040	319,040	319,040	319,040	319,040
Medical Benefits <sup>(4)</sup>	34,779	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A
Total <sup>(5)</sup>	17,711,900	17,677,121	15,697,121	15,697,121	15,697,121

- (1) The amounts of cash bonus shown assume that the Board would have determined to grant Mr. Mudd a cash bonus award under our annual incentive plan in the amount he actually received for 2007. In the case of retirement, Mr. Mudd's employment agreement does not explicitly provide for a bonus. The amount shown for retirement assumes that the Board would have determined to pay Mr. Mudd a cash bonus award under our annual incentive plan based on his status as a retiree on December 31, 2007.
- (2) The value shown is for acceleration of shares of restricted stock. No value is shown for Mr. Mudd's options subject to accelerated vesting because the exercise price of the options exceeded the closing price of our common stock on December 31, 2007. In the case of Early Retirement, acceleration of shares of restricted stock is subject to the discretion of the Board.
- (3) The reported amount is for payment under our performance share program for a performance period ending prior to 2007 that was unpaid as of December 31, 2007. These shares were paid in January 2008.
- (4) The amount shown assumes that Mr. Mudd would receive medical and dental coverage for two years after his termination of employment and is calculated using the assumptions used for financial reporting purposes under generally accepted accounting principles.
- (5) This table does not include Mr. Mudd's pension benefits, which are included above in the "Pension Benefits for 2007" table.

Potential Severance Payments to Stephen M. Swad. If we terminate Mr. Swad's employment prior to the end of 2008 for reasons other than "cause," he will receive severance benefits that include one year of salary, accelerated vesting of one cycle of any restricted stock or other stock-based award, and one year of subsidized medical and dental coverage. In addition, he will receive a 2008 annual incentive plan bonus, prorated based on the number of months he is employed during 2008. If Mr. Swad had been terminated for reasons other than for "cause" as of December 31, 2007, he would have been entitled to receive an aggregate cash severance payment of \$1,742,000, representing one year of salary as of December 31, 2007 and 80% of the target award for his 2007 annual incentive plan bonus (reflecting corporate performance), accelerated vesting of 23,334 shares of restricted stock, and a subsidy for medical and dental coverage we estimate would have cost us approximately \$12,620. Based on the closing price of our common stock on December 31, 2007, which was \$39.98 per share, Mr. Swad's benefits potential payments would total approximately \$2,687,513.

Agreement with Robert Levin. We have a letter agreement with Mr. Levin, dated June 19, 1990. The agreement provides that if he is terminated for reasons other than for "cause," he will continue to receive his base salary for a period of 12 months from the date of termination and will continue to be covered by our life, medical, and long-term disability insurance plans for a 12-month period, or until re-employment that provides certain coverage for benefits, whichever occurs first. For the purpose of this agreement, "cause" means a termination based upon reasonable evidence that Mr. Levin has breached his duties as an officer by engaging in dishonest or fraudulent actions or willful misconduct. Any disability benefits that he receives during the

12-month period will reduce the amount otherwise payable by us, but only to the extent the benefits are attributable to payments made by us. If Mr. Levin had been terminated for reasons other than for "cause" as of December 31, 2007, he would have been entitled to receive an aggregate cash severance payment of \$788,000 and medical, long-term disability, and life insurance coverage with premiums we estimate would have cost us approximately \$45,940, for a total of \$833,940.

#### Stock Compensation Plans, 2005 Performance Year Cash Awards and Performance Share Program

Death, Disability, and Retirement. Under the Fannie Mae Stock Compensation Plan of 1993 and the 2003 Plan, stock options, restricted stock, and restricted stock units held by our employees, including our named executives, fully vest upon the employee's death, disability or retirement. On these terminations, or if an option holder leaves after age 55 with at least 5 years of service, the option holder, or the holder's estate in the case of death, can exercise any stock options until the initial expiration date of the stock option, which is generally 10 years after the date of grant. For these purposes, "retirement" generally means that the executive retires at or after age 60 with 5 years of service or age 65 (with no service requirement).

2005 Performance Year Cash Award. In early 2006, our named executives, other than Mr. Mudd, received a portion of their long-term incentive stock awards for the 2005 performance year in the form of cash awards payable in four equal annual installments beginning in 2007. Under their terms, these cash awards are subject to accelerated payment at the same rate as restricted stock or restricted stock units and, accordingly, named executives would receive accelerated payment of the unpaid portions of this cash in the event of termination of employment by reason of death, disability, or retirement.

*Performance Share Program.* Performance shares are contingent grants of our common stock that are paid out based on performance over three-year performance periods. In June 2007, our Board made a decision to pay awards under our performance share program for performance periods ending prior to 2007.

For each named executive, other than Mr. Mudd, the following table provides the value of the awards that would have vested or become payable if, as of December 31, 2007, the named executive had died, become disabled, or retired either (1) at or after age 60 if the named executive had at least five years of service or (2) at or after age 65 regardless of the executive's length of service. Information about what Mr. Mudd would have been entitled to receive if he had died, become disabled, or retired as of December 31, 2007 appears in the "Potential Payments to Mr. Mudd as of December 31, 2007" table above.

# Potential Payments under our Stock Compensation Plans, 2005 Performance Year Cash Awards and Performance Share Program as of December 31, 2007<sup>(1)</sup>

Name of Executive	Restricted Stock and Restricted Stock Units	Cash Award <sup>(2)</sup>	Performance Shares <sup>(3)</sup>
Stephen Swad	\$3,198,400	_	_
Robert Blakely	4,442,218	\$1,242,203	_
Robert Levin	7,802,177	1,577,813	\$303,528
Peter Niculescu	3,452,433	664,290	179,270
Michael Williams	6,057,010	1,242,203	222,889

<sup>(1)</sup> The values reported in this table, except for the cash award, are based on a per share price of \$39.98, which was the closing price of our common stock on December 31, 2007. No amounts are shown in the table for stock options because the exercise prices for options held by Mr. Levin, Mr. Niculescu, and Mr. Williams that would have vested exceed the closing price of our common stock on December 31, 2007. Mr. Blakely and Mr. Swad have never been awarded Fannie Mae stock options.

<sup>(2)</sup> The reported amounts represent accelerated payment of cash awards made in early 2006 in connection with long-term incentive stock awards for the 2005 performance year.

<sup>(3)</sup> The reported amounts are for payments under our performance share program for a performance period ending prior to 2007 that were unpaid as of December 31, 2007. These shares were paid in January 2008.

Life Insurance Benefits. We currently have a practice of arranging for our officers, including our named executives, to purchase universal life insurance coverage at our expense, with death benefits of \$5,000,000 for Mr. Mudd and \$2,000,000 for our other named executives. The death benefit is reduced by 50% at the later of retirement, age 60, or 5 years from the date of enrollment. We provide the executives with an amount sufficient to pay the premiums for this coverage until but not beyond termination of employment, except in cases of retirement or disability, in which case we continue to make scheduled payments. Historically we also paid our named executives a tax "gross-up" to cover any related taxes, but these payments were eliminated as of January 1, 2008.

Annual Incentive Plan. Under our Annual Incentive Plan, the Compensation Committee has discretion to award prorated bonuses to employees who retire before bonuses are paid. Mr. Blakely retired in January 2008 before bonuses for the 2007 performance year were paid, and the Compensation Committee determined that it was appropriate to pay him a cash bonus under the plan for 2007.

Retiree Medical Benefits. We currently make certain retiree medical benefits available to our full-time salaried employees who retire and meet certain age and service requirements. We agreed that Mr. Blakely may participate in our retiree medical program as long as he remained employed until age 65, which he did.

*Pension and Deferred Compensation Benefits.* Our named executives are also entitled to the benefits described above in "Pension Benefits" and "Nonqualified Deferred Compensation."

#### REPORT OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Audit Committee of Fannie Mae's Board of Directors is composed of five directors. The purpose of the Audit Committee under its charter is to oversee:

- the accounting, reporting, and financial practices of the Corporation and its subsidiaries, including the integrity of the Corporation's financial statements and internal control over financial reporting;
- the Corporation's compliance with legal and regulatory requirements (in coordination with the Compliance Committee of the Board);
- the independent auditor's qualifications and independence; and
- the performance of the Corporation's internal audit function and the Corporation's independent auditor.

In accordance with this purpose, the independent auditor reports directly to the Audit Committee and the Audit Committee has the sole authority to appoint and retain the independent auditor. The Audit Committee pre-approves the fees for and the terms of all audit and non-audit services to be provided by Fannie Mae's independent auditor. The Committee meets separately on a periodic basis with management, with the head of the internal audit department, and with the independent auditor. The Committee has the authority to retain independent counsel, accountants, experts, and other advisors to assist the members in carrying out their duties.

For the year ended December 31, 2007, the Committee met with members of senior management (including the Chief Executive Officer, the Chief Operating Officer, the Chief Financial Officer, the Controller, the Chief Audit Executive, the Chief Risk Officer, the Chief Compliance Officer, the Senior Vice President for Accounting Policy, the Senior Vice President for Sarbanes-Oxley, and the General Counsel) and internal tax, finance, legal, and internal audit personnel, as well as representatives from Fannie Mae's independent auditor, to discuss and review the audit scope and plans; the results of internal and external audit examinations; evaluations by the Corporation and by the independent auditor of Fannie Mae's internal controls over financial reporting; the quality of Fannie Mae's financial reporting; Fannie Mae's compliance with legal and regulatory requirements; the accounting policies and procedures; the earnings press releases; financial information and earnings guidance; the engagement, independence and quality-control procedures of the independent auditor; and other matters. Specifically, for the year ended December 31, 2007, the Committee, among other things:

- reviewed, and discussed with management, the audited financial statements included in Fannie Mae's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2007;
- discussed with the independent auditor the matters required to be discussed by Statement on Auditing Standards No. 61, as amended;
- received the written disclosures and the letter from the independent auditor, Deloitte & Touche LLP, required by Independence Standards Board Standard No. 1 ("Independence Discussions with Audit Committees") and discussed with the independent auditor its independence from Fannie Mae;
- conducted due diligence regarding the independent auditor's independence from Fannie Mae and its management;
- reviewed and discussed the scope and resources for the internal audit function; and
- reviewed and oversaw the process by which Fannie Mae's Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer certified Fannie Mae's periodic disclosures.

In reliance on the reviews, reports, and discussions referred to above, the Audit Committee recommended to the Board of Directors, and the Board of Directors approved, the inclusion of the audited financial statements, for the year ended December 31, 2007, in Fannie Mae's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2007.

In addition, the Audit Committee has approved the appointment of Fannie Mae's independent auditor, Deloitte & Touche LLP, for 2008, and the Board of Directors has submitted the appointment to shareholders for ratification at the 2008 annual meeting.

Interested parties may contact the Audit Committee by electronic mail, sent to "auditcommittee@fanniemae.com," or by U.S. mail, sent to Audit Committee, c/o Office of the Secretary, Fannie Mae, Mail Stop: 1H-2S/05, 3900 Wisconsin Avenue NW, Washington DC 20016-2802.

THE AUDIT COMMITTEE
Dennis R. Beresford, Chair
Stephen B. Ashley
Karen N. Horn
Greg C. Smith
John K. Wulff

# PROPOSAL 2: RATIFICATION OF SELECTION OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

After evaluating the performance of Deloitte & Touche LLP in 2007, the Audit Committee has appointed Deloitte & Touche LLP as our independent registered public accounting firm for 2008. In accordance with established policy, the Board of Directors has ratified that appointment. Representatives of Deloitte & Touche LLP will be present at the annual meeting and will be given the opportunity to make a statement, if they desire to do so, and to respond to appropriate questions. Unless shareholders specify otherwise in their voting instructions, proxies solicited by the Board of Directors will be voted FOR ratification of the selection of Deloitte & Touche LLP as Fannie Mae's independent registered public accounting firm for 2008. A majority of the votes cast on this proposal is required for ratification.

The following table sets forth the aggregate estimated or actual fees for professional services provided by Deloitte & Touche LLP, including fees for the 2007 and 2006 audits.

Description of Fees	Fees for the Year Ended December 31, 2007	Fees for the Year Ended December 31, 2006
Audit Fees	\$47,000,000	\$42,000,000
Audit-Related Fees <sup>(1)</sup>	2,300,000	192,000
Tax Fees	<del>_</del>	<del>_</del>
All Other Fees	<del>_</del>	_
Total Fees	\$49,300,000	\$42,192,000

<sup>(1)</sup> For 2007, consists of: (i) fees billed for attest-related services on securitization transactions, and (ii) reimbursement of costs associated with responding to subpoenas relating to Fannie Mae's securities litigation. For 2006, consists of fees billed for attest-related services on securitization transactions.

#### **Pre-Approval Policy**

The Audit Committee's policy is to pre-approve all audit and permissible non-audit services to be provided by the independent registered public accounting firm for the upcoming year. The independent registered public accounting firm and management are required to present reports on the nature of the services provided by the independent registered public accounting firm for the past year and the fees for such services, categorized into audit services, audit-related services, tax services, and other services. In addition, management and the independent registered public accounting firm are required to submit a list of proposed audit and permissible non-audit services and the estimated fees for such services for the upcoming year. The Audit Committee approves the audit and permissible non-audit services for the upcoming year. Pre-approval for services is generally provided for up to one year, and any pre-approval is detailed as to the particular service or category of services and authorized fees. In the event that the fees for pre-approved services during the year exceed the authorized fees by 20%, then the increased fees must be pre-approved by the Audit Committee.

The Audit Committee has delegated the authority to pre-approve any audit and permissible non-audit services and fee increases that arise during the year to its current Chair, Mr. Beresford, who is required to report any such pre-approvals at the next scheduled meeting of the Audit Committee.

In 2007, no fees were paid to the independent registered public accounting firm pursuant to the de minimis exception established by the SEC, and all services were pre-approved.

The Board of Directors recommends that shareholders vote <u>FOR</u> the ratification of the selection of Deloitte & Touche LLP as Fannie Mae's independent registered public accounting firm for 2008.

#### SHAREHOLDER PROPOSAL

#### **Proposal 3: Proposal to Authorize Cumulative Voting**

Evelyn Y. Davis, Editor, Highlights and Lowlights, Watergate Office Building, 2600 Virginia Ave., N.W., Suite 215, Washington, DC 20037, owner of 600 shares, has advised Fannie Mae that the following resolution will be presented for approval of the shareholders at the annual meeting:

RESOLVED: "That the stockholders of FNMA, assembled in Annual Meeting in person and by proxy, hereby request the Board of Directors to take the necessary steps to provide for cumulative voting in the election of directors, which means each stockholder shall be entitled to as many votes as shall equal the number of shares he or she owns multiplied by the number of directors to be elected, and he or she may cast all of such votes for a single candidate, or any two or more of them as he or she may see fit."

"REASONS: Many states have mandatory cumulative voting, so do National Banks."

"In addition many corporations have adopted cumulative voting."

"At the last meeting of shareholders in December 2007, the owners of 263,028,695 shares, representing approximately 36.61% of shares voting, voted FOR this proposal."

If you AGREE, please mark your proxy FOR this resolution."

### **FANNIE MAE'S COMMENT**

Our Board has considered carefully the possible impact of the proposal to reinstate cumulative voting in the election of directors, and has determined that the proposal is not in the best interests of all of our stockholders. Therefore, the Board recommends a vote against the proposal.

**Summary:** The purpose of cumulative voting is to permit a minority of shareholders to cumulate their votes and elect one or more directors. Directors elected by minority shareholders might adopt positions that are in the best interests of minority, special interest shareholders, as opposed to all shareholders. As a result, we believe the proposal could impair the ability of the Board to function in the interests of the shareholders as a whole.

Directors elected by minority shareholders using cumulative voting could adopt positions that are in the best interests of minority, special interest shareholders, as opposed to all shareholders. Like most other U.S. corporations, each share of our common stock permits the holder to cast one vote in the election of each of the 12 candidates. Under cumulative voting, if a shareholder wished, he or she could cast 12 votes for each owned share for a single candidate. In a contested election, this could allow a well-organized minority shareholder group or a large shareholder to elect a director who advocates their positions, as opposed to positions that are in the best interests of all shareholders. The election of special interest directors could weaken the Board's ability to work effectively together for the best interests of the shareholders. Allowing each holder of shares of common stock to have one vote per share for each director nominee makes the election process more fair because the vote of a majority of the outstanding shares controls the outcome, resulting in a more effective Board.

Furthermore, in an uncontested election, given our adoption of majority voting in the election of directors (in which each director who fails to receive more votes for election than against must offer to resign), cumulative voting could permit a well-organized minority group of our shareholders or a large shareholder to target a given director for negative votes. Thus a director may not be elected under cumulative voting, even if that director would receive a clear majority of affirmative votes if each shareholder had one vote for each director. This could shift the focus in elections away from the voice and will of the majority and to the will of well-organized minority shareholders.

Shareholders eliminated cumulative voting at the Company in 1988 and since then have consistently rejected proposals to reinstate cumulative voting. Our shareholders voted overwhelmingly at our 1988 annual meeting to eliminate cumulative voting. In each of the 17 annual meetings since that time, our shareholders have rejected proposals similar to this one to reinstate cumulative voting.

The Board of Directors recommends that shareholders Vote  $\underline{AGAINST}$  this proposal.

#### **OTHER MATTERS**

As of the date of this proxy statement, the Board of Directors knows of no business that will come before the 2008 annual meeting other than that described in this proxy statement. If other business is properly brought before the 2008 annual meeting, the Board intends that the proxy holders will vote proxies on such matters according to the judgment of the proxy holders.

### SHAREHOLDER PROPOSALS AND DIRECTOR NOMINATIONS FOR 2009

A shareholder who intends to submit a proposal for consideration at the 2009 annual meeting must submit the proposal so that we receive it by no later than December 5, 2008, in order for the proposal to be considered for inclusion in the proxy statement and form of proxy that the Board of Directors will distribute in connection with that meeting. The shareholder proposal must be delivered to, or mailed and received by, Fannie Mae Shareholder Proposal, c/o Office of the Secretary, Fannie Mae, Mail Stop 1H-2S/05, 3900 Wisconsin Avenue, NW, Washington, DC 20016-2892.

If a shareholder does not wish to have the proposal included in the proxy statement but still wishes to present a proposal at the 2009 annual meeting, other than a director nomination, the shareholder must give written notice to us in accordance with Section 3.12 of our bylaws. The written notice should be sent via U.S. mail addressed to Fannie Mae Shareholder Proposal, c/o Office of the Secretary, Fannie Mae, Mail Stop 1H-2S/05, 3900 Wisconsin Avenue, NW, Washington, DC 20016-2892. In the case of proposals for the 2009 annual meeting of shareholders, the Secretary must receive written notice of the proposal not earlier than the close of business on January 20, 2009, and not later than the close of business on March 20, 2009. The written notice must include or be accompanied by a brief description of the proposal, the reasons for bringing the proposal before the annual meeting, the shareholder's name and address, the class and number of shares beneficially owned by the shareholder, and any material interest of the shareholder in the proposal. If a shareholder does not comply with Section 3.12 of our bylaws, the chair of the 2009 annual meeting may declare the proposal not properly brought before the meeting.

Any shareholder who wishes to nominate a director at the 2009 annual meeting must submit written notice in accordance with Section 4.20 of our bylaws and also must comply with the other provisions and requirements of Section 4.20. Written notice of a proposal for the nomination of a person to serve as a director must be received by the Office of the Secretary not earlier than the close of business on January 20, 2009 and not later than the close of business on March 20, 2009. The written notice should be directed to Fannie Mae Director Nominees, c/o Office of the Secretary, Fannie Mae, Mail Stop 1H-2S/05, 3900 Wisconsin Avenue NW, Washington, DC 20016-2892.

Alternatively, any shareholder who wishes to submit a candidate for consideration by the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee should submit a written recommendation to the Chairman of the Nominating Corporate Governance Committee, c/o Office of the Secretary, Fannie Mae, Mail Stop 1H-2S/05, 3900 Wisconsin Avenue NW, Washington, DC 20016-2892.

In the case of a director nomination or recommendation, the written notice shall set forth:

- the name, age, business address and residence address of each nominee proposed in the notice,
- the principal occupation or employment of each nominee,
- the class of securities and the number of shares of Fannie Mae capital stock that are beneficially owned by each nominee.
- any other information concerning each nominee that would be required under SEC rules in a proxy statement soliciting proxies for the election of that nominee as a director, and
- a statement whether the nominee, if elected, intends to tender, promptly following the nominee's election or reelection, an irrevocable resignation effective upon the nominee's failure to receive the required vote for reelection at the next meeting of shareholders at which the nominee faces re-election and upon acceptance of such resignation by the Board of Directors.

In the case of a director nomination, the notice shall be accompanied by a signed consent of each nominee to serve as a director if the nominee is elected.

We also may require any proposed nominee to furnish such other information as may be reasonably required to determine whether the proposed nominee is eligible to serve as an independent director or that could be material to a reasonable shareholder's understanding of the nominee's independence or lack thereof.

A copy of our bylaws is on file with the SEC and may be obtained from the Secretary of Fannie Mae upon request. Our bylaws also are available in the Corporate Governance section of our website at <a href="www.fanniemae.com">www.fanniemae.com</a>.

# COST OF ANNUAL MEETING AND PROXY SOLICITATION

We pay the cost of the annual meeting and the cost of soliciting proxies. In addition to soliciting proxies by mail, our officers and regular employees may solicit proxies by personal interview, telephone, facsimile, and similar means. None of our officers or employees will receive any additional compensation for these activities. We also intend to request that brokers, banks, nominees and other fiduciaries solicit proxies from their principals and will reimburse them for postage and other reasonable expenses they incur for these activities. We have retained Morrow & Co. Inc., a proxy solicitation firm, to assist in soliciting proxies, for an estimated fee of \$15,000, plus reimbursement of certain out-of-pocket expenses. This amount excludes costs normally expended for a solicitation for an uncontested election of directors, and salaries and wages of regular employees and officers.

### FORM 10-K, ANNUAL REPORT TO SHAREHOLDERS

If you would like a copy of our most recent annual report on Form 10-K, which contains our financial statements and other information about us, we will send you one without charge upon written request. If you are at a shared address to which a single copy of the Annual Report to Shareholders, this Proxy Statement, or the Notice of Internet Availability of Proxy Material was delivered and you would like a separate copy of any these documents, we will send you one promptly upon written or oral request. Write or call the Office of Investor Relations at Fannie Mae, 3900 Wisconsin Avenue NW, Washington, DC 20016 or (202) 752-7115. We also have posted our Form 10-K and our Annual Report to Shareholders to our website at <a href="https://www.fanniemae.com">www.fanniemae.com</a>. The Annual Report to Shareholders tells you how to get additional information about us.





3900 WISCONSIN AVENUE NW WASHINGTON, DC 20016

VOTE BY INTERNET - www.proxyvote.com

Use the Internet to transmit your voting instructions and for electronic delivery of information up until 11:59 P.M. Eastern Time on May 19, 2008. Have your proxy card in hand when you access the Web site and follow the instructions to obtain your records and to create an electronic voting instruction form.

#### **ELECTRONIC DELIVERY OF FUTURE SHAREHOLDER COMMUNICATIONS**

If you would like to reduce the costs Fannie Mae incurs in mailing proxy materials, you can consent to receiving all future proxy statements, proxy cards and annual reports electronically via e-mail or the Internet. To sign up for electronic delivery, please follow the instructions above about how to vote by Internet and, when prompted, indicate that you agree to receive or access shareholder communications electronically in future years.

#### VOTE BY TELEPHONE - 1-800-690-6903

Use any touch-tone telephone to transmit your voting instructions up until 11:59 P.M. Eastern Time on May 19, 2008. Have your proxy card in hand when you call and then follow the instructions.

VOTE BY MAIL
Mark, sign and date your proxy card and return it in the postage-paid
envelope we have provided or return it to Fannie Mae, c/o Broadridge,
51 Mercedes Way, Edgewood, NY 11717 so that it is received by close of
business on May 19, 2008.

Your voting instructions are confidential.

TO VOTE, MARK BLOCKS BELOW IN BLUE OR BLACK INK AS	FOLLO	ws:	FANMA1 KEEP THIS	S PORTION FO	OR YOUR	RECORDS
THIS PRO	OXY C	ARD IS VALID OF	LY WHEN SIGNED AND DATED. DETACH A	ND RETURN 1	HIS POR	TION ONLY
FANNIE MAE						
The Board of Directors recommends a vote FOR	Propos	sals 1 and 2.			-	<b>-</b> 7
COMPANY PROPOSALS	For	Against				
<ol> <li>Proposal to elect 12 directors</li> </ol>	_	_				'
01) Stephen B. Ashley	0	0				
02) Dennis R. Beresford	0	0	5 5 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1	For	Against	Abstain
03) Louis J. Freeh	0	0	<ol><li>Proposal to ratify the selection of Deloiti Touche LLP as independent registered pu accounting firm for 2008.</li></ol>		0	0
04) Brenda J. Gaines	0	0	The Board of Directors recommends a v AGAINST Proposal 3.	rote		
05) Karen N. Horn, Ph.D.	0	0	SHAREHOLDER PROPOSAL	For	Against	Abstain
06) Bridget A. Macaskill	0	0	3. Proposal to authorize cumulative voting.	0	0	0
07) Daniel H. Mudd	0	0				
08) Leslie Rahl	0	0				
09) John C. Sites, Jr.	0	0				
10) Greg C. Smith	0	0		Yes	No	
11) H. Patrick Swygert	0	0	Please indicate if you plan to attend this meeting	ng. 🔘	0	
12) John K. Wulff	0	0	Please date and sign below exactly as your name or nar Joint owners should each sign personally. Corporate corporate name by an authorized officer and attested. capacity should indicate his or her full title in the fidicia	mes appear(s) o proxies should Any person sig ry capacity.	n this prox be signed ning in a fi	y card. in full duciary
Signature [PLEASE SIGN WITHIN BOX] Date			Signature (Joint Owners) Date			



#### PROXY SOLICITED ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

FOR THE 2008 ANNUAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS MAY 20, 2008

You, the undersigned shareholder, appoint each of Louis J. Freeh, Karen N. Horn and Brenda J. Gaines, your attorney-infact and proxy, with full power of substitution, to vote on your behalf shares of Fannie Mae common stock that you would be entitled to vote at the 2008 Annual Meeting of Shareholders, and any adjournment of the meeting, with all powers that you would have if you were personally present at the meeting. The shares represented by this proxy will be voted as instructed by you and in the discretion of the proxies on all other matters. If not otherwise specified, shares will be voted FOR Proposals 1 and 2, and AGAINST Proposal 3.

**Voting Methods:** If you wish to vote by mail, please sign your name exactly as it appears on this proxy and mark, date and return it in the enclosed envelope. If you wish to vote by Internet or telephone, please follow the instructions on the reverse side. If you submit your proxy by Internet or telephone, please do not return your proxy card.